MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, April 29, 2021 - 2:00 P.M.

WELCOME TO THE MIRA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING. MIRA VALUES YOUR ATTENDANCE AND REQUESTS
THAT SPEAKERS APPEARING UNDER THE PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION OF THE AGENDA LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS
AND/OR PRESENTATION TO MATTERS UNDER THE BOARD'S JURISDICTION. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK TO ANY ITEM
ON THE AGENDA, PLEASE WAIT UNTIL THAT ITEM HAS BEEN CALLED. PERSONS ADDRESSING THE BOARD SHALL
HAVE FIVE MINUTES TO COMPLETE HIS/HER COMMENTS ON EACH AGENDA ITEM.

Welcome - Call to Order
Introduction of New Board Member
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment — Announcements

. Consent:
A. Approval of March 31, 2021 Minutes
B. Approval of April 7, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes

il. Presentations (No Development Presentations):
A. Ethics Education Requirements and Sunshine Law Review
B. MIRA Maintenance Obligations/Expense Report

. New Business:

MIRA Budget FY 2021-2022 Budget — Proposed CIP Projects (Action Item)

RZK Architects — Amphitheatre (Action ltem)

Signage — Merritt Park Place (50 N. Courtenay Pkwy and SR 520 entrances)

Signage Proposal 2575 N. Courtenay Pkwy (Exterior Signage) (Action item)

RFQ — Landscape Architecture and Engineering (Action Item)

Sea Ray Drive & Merritt Park Place Concept Planning Stakeholders Meeting (Action Item)

TmMmoOoO®P

Iv. Ongoing/Old Business Status Updates
A. U-Haul Project Update
B. Creative Services RFP
C. Charitable Gift Agreement Work Scope (Action Item)
D. TDC Amphitheatre Grant Agreement
E. Community Redevelopment Plan Survey
F. SR 520 and Courtenay Pkwy Landscape Remediation

V. Board Reports and Presentations:
Larry Lallo, Executive Director
Cindy Thurman, Land Development Manager
Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney
Eddie Lebron, Chairman
Andy Barber, Board Member
Wendy Ellis, Board Member
Marcus Herman, Board Member
Jack Smink, Board Member
Jack Ratterman, Board Member
Nicole Morgan, Board Member



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, April 29, 2021 - 2:00 P.M.

Adjourn

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the MIRA Board of Directors is scheduled for May 27, 2021 2:00 P.M.



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM LA.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Consent Agenda

PROJECT: March 31, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes

Requested Action: Approval

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: March 31, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes March 31, 2021 - 2:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT
Eddie Lebron, Chairman
Andy Barber

Wendy Ellis

Jack Smink

Jack Ratterman

MEMBERS ABSENT
Marcus Herman

AGENCY STAFF

Larry Lallo, MIRA Executive Director

Cindy Thurman, Land Development Manager
Cheryl Hurren, Admin. Assistant to Director

GUESTS

Alex Esseesse, County Attorney’s Office

Justin Caron, County Attorney’s Office

Jeff Ball, Brevard County Planning & Development Department

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
The Board began with the Pledge of Allegiance and Chairman Lebron called the meeting to order
at 2:05 p.m.; Ms. Hurren completed a roll call of the Board Members.

PUBLIC COMMENT/ANNOUNCEMENTS: None

. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of February 25, 2021 Meeting Minutes:

Board Member Barber made a motion to approve the February 25, 2021 meeting minutes. The
motion was seconded by Board Member Ellis. The motion was unanimously approved.

ll. Development Presentations - None

lll. New Business:

A. Charitable Gift Agreement — Director Lallo explained a donation has been presented by a donor
through Vanguard Charitable Fund to MIRA for use on landscaping in the Veteran’s Memorial Park.
There was discussion about the specifications for the project and maintenance.

Board Member Barber made a motion to accept the donation, subject to a review of the scope of
work, and setting aside of the contribution $5,000 towards maintenance. The motion was
seconded by Board Member Smink. The motion was unanimously approved.



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes March 31, 2021 - 2:00 PM

B. TDC Amphitheatre Grant Agreement — Director Lallo advised the Board about
important elements of the TDC Grant Agreement for the construction of the Amphitheatre. Director
Lallo also stated that MIRA’s Amphitheatre funding commitment of $1,000,000, would be spent first
before the TDC grant of $1,270,833; RZK Architects under management of the County Facilities
Department is to do the design and Facilities would be managing the construction of the project.
The anticipated start construction date is 2" or third quarter of FY 2022. It is possible to extend the
agreement for good cause to an extension date to 2026; MIRA will need to work out with Parks and
the Veterans Memorial Council a Memorandum of Understanding for Management and
Maintenance of the facility.

Board Member Ellis made a motion to approve the TDC Agreement. The motion was seconded
by Board Member Barber. The motion was unanimously approved.

The Board scheduled a special meeting for April 7 at 3 p.m. to have a focus group meeting with the
Veterans and RZK Architects to discuss the TDC Amphitheatre project parameters and conceptual
lay out.

Matt Culver with Natural Resources provided an update on the Griffis Landing Roofing Structural
modifications and Window Replacement Project. Mr. Culver reviewed the different project costs
received through several re-bids and told the Board there remains a short fall from the original
amount approved and agreed to by the Board in order to complete the project. Mr. Culver asked if
the Board would be able to continue forward, now that the bid prices have substantially improved.

Board Member Barber made a motion to grant the short fall in the amount of $88,443. The
motion was seconded by Board Member Ellis. Discussion: Chairman Lebron commented the bids
are a good sign of the market. Board Member Herman said there’s to many amendments. Board
Member Barber suggested adding 5% to cover any future changes which would bring the total to
$95,724. Per our Budget Analyst, Keith Neterer. The total budget for the project is now $367,568
and $24,125 has already been expensed, that leaves $343,443 in total budget needed to complete
the project. There is currently $255,000 budgeted for this project which means MIRA will need to
approve a minimum of $88,443 to provide enough budget for this project

Board Member Ellis was ok with changing the amount.

The motion was unanimously approved.




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes March 31, 2021 - 2:00 PM

C. Director Lallo shared that the Creative Services RFP has received another round of reviews
and that it is ready to move forward. This will enable MIRA to create its web site, and create
and initiate its social media and related communications strategies. It was recommended
that the Board appoint a new Evaluation/Negotiation Committee Selection, including
another person with marketing and web experience. There was a motion by Jack Smink and
a second by Eddie Lebron that the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency Board of
Directors move forward to solicit Request for Proposals Number RFP 7-21-14 - Request for
Proposal for Creative Services for Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency and to approve
the following Selection and Negotiating Committee Members: Wendy Ellis, MIRA Board
Member and Creative Services Project Liaison; Andy Barber, Merritt Island
Redevelopment Agency Board (Alternate for Wendy Ellis); Tim Booker, Space Coast Office
of Tourism — or Alternative Appointment by Space Coast Office of Tourism Executive
Director Peter Cranis; and Larry Lallo, Executive Director.

D. Director Lallo presented the State Required Annual Report FY 19-20 — prior to the meeting, the Board
received a copy of the Agency’s state required Annual Report FY 19-20 for review. Board members
expressed their appreciation for the report, and the information sends a good message about the
work of MIRA. The report this year includes our audit.

Board Member Barber made a motion to approve the Annual Report FY 19-20. The motion was
seconded by Board Member Smink. The motion was unanimously approved.

E. Director Lallo presented the State Required Annual Audit for FY 19-20 completed by Cherry Bekaert.
Prior to the meeting, the Board also received a copy of the Agency’s state required Audit report FY
19-20 for their review. Board members expressed their appreciation for the quality of the audit, and
our receiving a favorable review.

Board Member Barber made a motion to accept/approve the Annual Audit Report as submitted
by Cherry Bekaert. The motion was seconded by Board Member Ellis. The motion was
unanimously approved.

F. Community Redevelopment Perspectives Survey — Director Lallo explained to the Board the survey
is a tool to obtain community-based perspectives data, as a prelude to our Redevelopment Plan
update. Director Lallo requested the Board’s approval to initiate the community data survey which
would aide in preparing the upcoming redevelopment plan. Staff will work with Darlene Hunt to
develop a short questionnaire to go out with the North Merritt Island Homeowner Association
Newsletter, in conjunction with a survey they conduct. A more detailed Perspectives survey will go
out to a random sample of Merritt Island residents and businesses island wide. Board Member Andy
Barber is willing to assist.



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes March 31, 2021 - 2:00 PM

Board Member Barber made a motion to proceed with the survey. The motion was seconded by
Board Member Ratterman. The motion was approved, by members present. Jack Ratterman was
excused and had to leave the meeting.
IV. Director Lallo updated the Board as to the status of the following:

A. VMC Amphitheatre Project Update

B. U-Haul Project Update

C. Board Member Recommendations
V. Board Reports and Presentations:
Wendy Ellis advised the Board that Terry Jordan is now the new director for Space Coast Transit.
Staff was notified of one of the new bus shelters had a component part stolen, which directed
attention to the contracting a maintenance company for the bus shelters. Board member Ellis
suggested Mike McGrew in Facilities be notified.
Cindy Thurman, Land Development Manager: No report.
Alex Esseesse, MIRA Attorney: shared that Public Works wants clarification of funding of the South
Courtenay/Cone Road project landscaping and maintenance. Attorney Esseesse also told the Board
this meeting would be last and Jason Caron would be taking his place.

Jason Caron, Assistant County Attorney: No report.

Eddie Lebron, Chairman: thank Staff, Board members, and volunteers for their participation. South
Courtenay needs love.

Andy Barber: told the Board Mr. Sutton does not have any interested parties in his property.
Marcus Herman: Absent.

Wendy Ellis: No report.

Jack Smink: left at 4:10.

Jack Ratterman: Shared that North Merritt Island is still looking forward for MIRA’s expansion.

Board Member Barber made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:06. Board Member Ellis
seconded the motion. Unanimously approved.

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the MIRA Board of Directors is April 29, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.



&3
MERRITT ISLAND
e REDEVELOPHENT AGENCY et

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM I.B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Consent Agenda

PROJECT: April 7, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes

Requested Action: Approval

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: April 7, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Special Meeting Minutes April 7, 2021 - 2:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT
Eddie Lebron, Chairman
Marcus Herman

Andy Barber

Wendy Ellis

Jack Smink

Jack Ratterman

MEMBERS ABSENT

AGENCY STAFF

Jason Caron, MIRA Attorney; CAO

Larry Lallo, MIRA Executive Director

Cindy Thurman, Land Development Manager
Cheryl Hurren, Admin. Assistant to Director

GUESTS

Don Weaver, Veteran’s Memorial Park
John Zwick, Project Architect

Tim Lawry, Facilities Project Team
Mike Dunlap, Facilities Project Team
Commissioner Bryan Lober

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Chairman Lebron called the meeting to order at 2:25 p.m.; Ms. Hurren completed a roll call of the
Board Members. Director Lallo initiated an around the room introduction by each person.

Director Lallo shared there are 2 parts to this special meeting today. This 1% part is for the benefit
of Mr. Zwick of RZK Architects to hear what the Board would like to see in the design of the
Amphitheatre at Veteran’s Park so he has a starting point. There is a 2.3 million-dollar budget for
the project with 1.0 million coming from MIRA and a 1.3 million-dollar grant from the TDC along
with their expectations generated by MIRA’s application for the grant. In addition, Don Weaver is
here to share the Veteran’s expectations and submitted an event list with the Freedom Ride Home
scheduled in May.

Mr. Zwick said the key factor in developing facilities is to consider serving the crowd size,
accommodating the performers, providing for their mode of transportation, and unloading their
equipment. Restrooms were discussed, with the goal being of reaching a number of restrooms to
take care of the average size crowd attending the 26 large events. Sanitary sewer connection will be
required.



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Special Meeting Minutes April 7, 2021 - 2:00 PM

Mr. Zwick and Mr. Lallo shared with the Board that moving of the “Medal of Honor” Monument
needs to be considered due to our space requirements to reach optimum capacity as approved by
the TDC Grant of 5,000 persons, and at the same time being respectful of the monument during
Amphitheatre performances. Commissioner Lober was present for the discussion and will plan to
initiate a meeting with the supporters of the monument, known as the River Rats organization, Mr.
Weaver, Commissioner Lober, Mr. Zwick, and Mr. Lallo to consider another site.

Mr. Zwick was asked to provide a concept sketch based on today’s discussions by April 22" to be
presented at the MIRA meeting on April 29. Mr. Lallo to let Mr. Zwick know who the meeting works
out with the River Rats Medal of Honor team.

The Board also talked briefly about parking and the need for hiring a manager for scheduling and
managing performances. Part one ended at 4:00.

Director Lallo presented the 2" part of the meeting for consideration of MIRA’s 7t Board Member.
3 candidates have been scheduled and at the end of the interviews, score sheets are to be completed
anonymously by each sitting Board Member and the score sheets will be tallied by Larry Lallo and
Chairman Lebron. The totals will be the basis for the final selection, if the Board approves of the
process. There was a consensus to move forward.

Interviewees: Tammy Dabu, 4:15-4:35. Joan Sinatra, 4:37-4:47. Nicole Morgan, 4:49-5:07. Mr. Lallo
asked Chairman Lebron to tally the score sheets while Mr. Lallo observed. The tally found Nicole
Morgan to have the Board’s highest score. Director Lallo said he would contact Ms. Morgan to offer
her the Board seat, subject to Commissioner Lober putting forth her name to be appointed and
approved by the BoCC.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m.

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the MIRA Board of Directors is April 29, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.



i
MERRITT ISLAND

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM ILA.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Board Education Presentation

PROJECT: Ethics Education Requirements and Sunshine Law Review

Requested Action:

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached:




20140 S,Asuiony Aluno) pienaug







"Uuolimnsuoy EplIo[4 syl JO ¢ UOHISS

‘| 9211y 1e paajuelensd Ajjeuoilnliisuod

Sl 31 12yl me| eplio|4 Jo ued jueriodwi ue
Yons S Me| aulysuns syl Ul JUSWUIDA0D) 3y




‘uay el 9g 1SnW sSuileaw a3yl JO SANUIN —

pue ‘UaAI3
97 1Shw s3uil@aw Yyans JO 32130U 3|qeuoseay —




which fdre_s"e_eable action will be taken by that

board, council or comm

ISSIOoN.



‘po3eanodsip

SI 31 3N ‘S}UDWIWIOI }1J1]OS 10U S0P 1} JI UORE|OIA B J0Uu

s1 SunnPaw dijgnd e je uoissnasip o0} Jolid siaquiaw J9Ylo
9y3 03 suaded uonisod Suiynquaasip jo acnodeid ayy :310N

'SUOIIOBIDIUI BIPSW |BIDOS/X}00Q3de] —
PUE {Su0I1eSIaAU0D auoyd a1eAlld —

:suollediunwwod
U_CO\;uw_w Lmsuo 10 mwmmmmwg uxwu m__mrc E] |,

a@@@%@@g@@&o@ USNLM —

| :BIA SSUISNQ pJeod JO uoissnasip aieAlid
ul 93e3us Jo uo uo1lde el |ON Aew siaquiaw aJow JO OM|




sulloaW e J3alje pue aJo}aq
SUOI]}BSI3AUO) pUB SUOI}BSIBAUO) Jeg 3PIS e

‘9glpne SI UoISSNISIP 9yl 24NS DIBIA
'21|ghd 9yl a1epowwodde 0}

21enbape siI Ajlj1oe} 3Y31 JO 3ZIS 9yl 34NS D|IA
'(921A43S P00} Sullinbal
mEmSBmE se r_u:mv mucm_ucm:m u__n:o_

59978 H@E@@
1ey31 JO 91BUIWIIISIP 1BY] SaI3IjIde) 3sh 1,uo(




‘pauodisod ag p|noys sis11ew asoyy
uo uoijde jewJos Aue eyl pasiape sey |esauan Asuiolly ayl

Ing ‘epuade 9yl UO 10U 3Je 1eyl SI911BW SSNISIP UBD pieoq 3yl

‘(92130U SInoYy {Z ueyl SS3| 10U INQ) 32110U SINOY 7/ 1seI| 1e
spinoJid 03 a|qedajald si 11 ‘sguinasw Aduadiswsa Jo |el1dads o4

‘duil@aw ayi o1 Jolud sAep /7 1sea| 1e
papinoid ag pjnoys 32110u ‘sduilsaw pajnpayds Ajue|ndau 1o4
Jo1rew 123lgns |etauagd

| wr_“— w_o_m__m>m S| m_ucwmm ou JI ‘_O m_ocwmm w_.\_w w_o_m__m>m ..: —

‘8u @@@E ay1 o @@@i pue awiy 3y
| | u@:@@:@@@
ssunsaw o1ignd [|e 4o paJinbaJ si 92130u 21jgnd ajqeuoseay




‘paAe|ap

9d 10U p|nOoYys 1ng ‘swel} awll 21}103ds ON
‘uolydadsul a1gnd

0} uado pue paptodai Apdwoutd 3q I1SnIA

AV



'UOISSILILWLIOD
10 pJeoq e }Jo jjeyaq uo Sunoe uosiad auQ

'Adua3e JUsWwUuJan0s e

JO }Jjeyaq uo ssauisng 3ulop saiuedwod ajeAlld
'SUOISSIWIWOD

10 spJeoq ‘s|1ounod pajuiodde Jo pa31as9|3

I\



‘Aleludoiduwii Jo soueseadde syl ploAe 0] |njaJed a9
"UOISSIWWOD JO pJeod ‘|IoUnod 419yl 94049(q W 0D
Aew yoiym siapzew ssnasip 1ou Aew Asayi Ing ‘sap —




sjuswWalinbal auIysuns JUsAWNIID 0} sauoyd
10 |I_BWI ‘BIpaW |BI20S ‘1X31 3SN |ONNYD e

slaquaw pJeog Jaylo
YIM 91B21UNWIWOD 0} 1INPUOD 3¢ J0UUEBD JJBIS

>ucmm<\_8mom o1eledas Jo Jaquiaw SUll93IA
Sl ~pJeoq o3 _@wuc_oaam S| J4e1s cm;>>_|
Q@@E@E E@o@ @:@ INW “SA JaquisW E@o@ 38 ue IS —

14e15 Y1Mm SBUNSSIN




'SI9qUIBW Y] USdaM]3Q 31e(gap 4O
UOISSNISIP OU SI 349Y3 papinoid ‘@auepualie Ul

9q Aew ﬂmo_EmE meo r_m:of UDAS mco_c_o_o




~Aouage

Aue AqQ ssauisnq |eId1}}0 JO uoljoesuedl ayl yium

UOI303UU0I Ul JO 9dUBUIPJIO JO Me| 0] Juensind

POAI923J 1O 9pew ‘uolissiwsuel) JO sueaw Jo

‘Sol3s1i910eJeyd ‘wJaoj |eaisAyd ays Jo sso|piesal

‘lelaalew 4aylo Jo ‘@iemyjos 3uissadsoud

elep mmc__SoUE punos ‘swijiy m_‘_n_mgwopoca

‘sadey ‘s> jooq ‘sdew DEMETR ‘ssaded ‘syuswnoop
||, :Se @1n1e1s Ag paulap S, PI0294 3 @@@%

¢ 10231 21/gnd e sI 18y







Q.



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM I11.B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Board Presentation

PROIJECT: MIRA Maintenance Obligations/Expense Report

Requested Action:

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached:




ANINLHYAIQ SHYYd

ANTWLHYIRQ SNHYe

- PR i) :
>~_5uwm.wmw._u_._u_‘sm:_amuwv:m:umwmmzn_m_a_:_umx_miﬁnonHmﬂm

il

H|emapis 40 seyans I [BRUISS3 JO
P3AIOAU] || 35BYd “S35BT JAJRM WLIOTS JO UCHONIISUOD PAAOAU] | 35eYd

e e e e e e e

00000 TS FRMSSAM WHIN
I 5WHA SININGNOEARL 1Y TVINOMIN SV LI

s191j2Ys § o1 puisdis|

3 LAY 000'0ES HAFWNesddE
01 J|QNOP [(|M SIS0) “FURUEIL|L
UOLSEE J0) SN
Bujpnioul Jsyays sng sad smad

35d DOO'YS 3| PRIBWNSS Sre 510 |

B
PIq 011N0 U0 sBY 19EUOD ON

rualie|[e3su) o) Aed 01 YHIIN 'sHed/s)asse pamfiuaitmbs
1o} 3gsuadsal 5| Jisued) ealy JE807 Bo8dS
*IUBUSIUIEIN SURNOY [BIALSD JaJ AQISUCSY S| WHII|

B3R 332J2U0 YO MO|q 13)3Ys 3L Usem ainssaid ‘saumxy vy
103) |erowaa 8nq !syauaysey ads
‘eask 3wes vy yser dn y3|d pue L33|ays W) 133y OT-G FEE Mo
{3paa 104 IPIRIQISH ‘sued ysel A)9q 8iq jo uoneIado pue ‘sjaued Jepo)
pue s)yBK 322y ‘sued Ysesy SURO3UIS|Q ‘WsiiepUBA Joj 193dsu) ea|
d {eAowial ‘eale Buneas pur RS o)

A3a.1Us Bujues|D L1a)awWwad Bunel PIIM S35 4O UoDadsU} © FuR
BaJy 520D 3deds Yy aseyd Bujuued ayy Ut 2ue s19)ays sng alcull

¢ ‘paladwon pue psud|sap saeY 5J43313ys sng paJamod Je|os SRRy ¥
IONYNILINIYA INILNOHY S3LIS HALIIHS SN|

fpa131dusod Wiy

13)134s 8 UYM) 000°052$ INIWLSIANI AIVLANLST WHIIV|
BZS S OL HLHON 075 ¥S WON4 AVADINYd KW L¥NGD
H14ON INHA WIMY

VYNYNVE 'S O1 1SV 39148 AJYHIWNH LYIENH WO
(AYMISNYD ONYISI LLIMH3W 153M) 025 31N0Y Aivis)
SHILT1IHS S

gFEFNI|
38 01 133rOMd Fnind

3]
ONY YUY HLM LNV
IO ILNI $10Z B3NS

GFSENIRD
78 01 L33r0Nd FUNLY

@G3SSNISIA 38 OL 1I3fOUd IENLMF

Q3SSNISIA 38 OL LI3rOkd FHMLM

000's $

213 ‘vonobu Bupnudy|

‘BDUBIS « UIDGUIE O PRIUT FAgIA
$DY 31 30U “SwaY |DUOISDII0 Jof tAnd]
YHIW ‘uonoipaiay Jof Sujpumisd|

a3ssnosia
38 01 13370Md F¥NLNS

Q3SSNI51Q 38 O L3FT0d FNLMT|

‘sasuadxa aaueuajuiew
oy s(seq (B3| © 3q 03 Waas Jou 5200 ‘HAMION'SIS)
Inoqe BuiAed sem yy|IN “paJjdxs 3 INQ Yed Anmasitny
40 3UBUBYUIEW Jo) AJUNODY PIBASI] WilM [uawaally

2Je Supys|| pue JuaLIILBYUS NemapIS ‘sapeiFdn Ala)es pue adedi|
199415 ‘Welpalu Aemyied Aeusuinod “peoy auod Buiyoeosdde 3pis s

1930ud a3 Jo sluBwWa|e paredipuef

243 Uo LRIPaW Jeauy 2B.e| Ayl Joy 1 1

PUR ‘ABUSLINGY) YINOS JO IPIS 159M Y3 Suo|e PITU Judwanadw)
J0 uonejuaWaldwi 3y3 33EY)10E) (|t PUE ‘8e)s Busuue|d Aleutwsyaad wj|
51 pafoud siyL {SINILSAS NOLLYDIMHI)

‘IINVYNILNIVIN ONY NOLLYTTV.LSNI DNIYISANYT NYIQIN 2L

Jaremwuo)s e ‘anss| Aydede> pue Aajes peol & oy suoanos]

THE WOIHLIITI Va4
TNE HALYM VOO0 (Mivd AVMYILYA ONIGI33 SNIGNTT)

LOIIIA £°TS 40 TYLOL Nl

40 NOILNEIYINDI 1D30Hd VHIIN ‘000°00ES$ LY SRLVIMNLESS
ONIdVISANYT - NOMIN 275 SNIHOVOUddY 51500
1D3IT0Hd AILVNILST AVOH INOI 0L AHIIBNILAOS seiiy
AVYMYNYD AYN2LENOD MLMOE

“SEIAT ALD ¥ODOD 40 153
3D0IYA AJUBWNH LYIENH 0 HINOS ONY HLEON GNY|

jonuuy Auo Buihod JON VEIN
UBWIaIBY [D30[I)U] IARIY ON 1 OF |

ue sem 2J3y3 ET0Z - 800Z UI “Jed S|y} UIEIUIBW & ¥HIN O] SI3AI¥D LV dWNd FovNois]
3q M A NG 503 SBIALIEEY MOT38 VIHY AVMISNVD NO GILVNLIS Hivd AvMEd iy,
B i 1ed) L 1 - SNIYISONYY
oD S | uoned||qo ou 3q 0) 5Wass pue JIBIUOD SAIIE oU SI 3] | AYMALYD STV TVADH -
SUIUSIDY [COOHEI] IV ON 1 05
s] - aliphg 13aload paiminss
1507 2SNOH Uj 005 TS AR
Pa330.3u0 80K ZTS 'BO6ETS “TVLOL ATNO NVIGAW 350158 AZHINNH LEIANH
= 5 | ooo'oy $ | moo'on $ wfipng Pafoiy priewnty
. e THE TYIILDIE Td,
oM
nﬁsmusnmnuo\_unmﬂ.“ﬁﬁ pue Buyd)| pue wofEd|u) T8 YILYM YOIO0D (Nd¥d AVMYILYM ONIQI3d DHICNYT
e Buyipuey vaIN “Bapstd| sayan pue Bunusi - S141¥D LY dINNd ONY NIJHIYD ONY GOTTOW LV SAINNd Z) SWALEAS
P .:oaui.mrsmz _zmh_u acig| oHmoude 28ueyoxa paale]pur uoneBl) Sujpuey wiIW Bupled 104 MOY 4o 3BueyIx NOILYD I BNLHON
aq ? - !._n 01 paiefas g osje A 5L} paauBe o3 pate(ds Ajjewsagu Ajqissod - avepd uj Apuawina| (33415 SNDIS A¥MILYD
i-\g:s\ Au Buyog 108 Li!c___ Huideaspliey s3ejd Y.ed 319 quawsaidy ouads ON Yam VHIW/AIUNG) paenaig ONIAVISANYT AYM 20 LHOIY ONY N¥IDIH
. Sujureiuew st Aun d
o o -5 Rt e o o v
- - 3 3 14 parunsg
0000sES Io|
124D peen y
Si3Y)0 pUD “SLRAIE|
10f Bupiodaly TROMINOD)
BOOT/TL/P0 3N I0GOJS) 5, Bf - EAIIONLTIGNG
Togs g0l sz LIRSS PUD 513ADd U Jo D 1o Jo| . at\m_t e y “dwnd velEBLL SE YINS IO 4O BEE5
4 .. -y Juawadpiday Jof Wy 36PN g Eniug| ) \ FoueUSIUIRW 2dEISPUE| 3Y) JO SPISING SWIN} AIRLIPIOEL
vdr) NOLLY 4D LNIDC BpaM H90d 10a 135N10H NI 000'0$ I 1924 J0] Uiz 3200nq ISR 0 uiag suo o3 sarody iy ELSLELA J2 SPIE sius) SHAVE Ay EIANS 01 (AYAMISNYD ONWIS! Liuuaw 53
P 2 A o iy ; COO'DSE 2 PAOSI STFNNG LIRS 104 Buided Ussg sey vHIN '{vdr) Wweweasdy Bumurld SW3LSAS NOLLYDINHI SYIHY NIVMSSOLD ICIHE Xnvd
10T ‘SHHOM DMNBN ALNNDI| NLSW :Aq papuns Ajguasn3) 0S/8E°TS 05™ (RE'SS TTVLOL o Ay uosDr - FINVNILNGWW 50 025 31NOY ILVLS WOHI AVMNYYA AYNILUNOI MLEOM
BRI PIR[RQ TIOAA S uior e yAnouy L {10Q4) uoneuedsuel | Jo jusuedaa|  3ALLYYOD3A ONIdYISANYT HYIOTW
OYYATNE HLIM ANIWNIFHDY NOISIAG INFNLHYATT SHHOM >
« WORBIFIUITY 000 OrS 46f Buminaid] ©pLOI4 3U1 03 Apled 3|qisuodsay s 1) Aoy pumARlg
D03 LNI ZT0Z-B00Z QHIdXE, 21780d ALNNOD QWY AIYE|
24 fijm K121 nq SIS0 DIUBUTIUIO
- SNYIOIN ONY SAYM 30 IHOMW

sauTUEy |

40} NOW 10TH £#TOV Z102

"0T0Z U %0

03 8u13np3. 5007 ut Fujarns %05
Aed 0) vyl Wi 3oUEUILNY
3503 [B101 Ob2 S 4R g

ied NI PUR € Y5 PUE OZS ¥S]
40) AUNo) 343 puE VYN Laamiag
JuaWB.BY SO0T & LAIM EOWIN
pue s,NOW 4o Asersy Buoy

SINGWTIYOV ONINYIAOD

895 TS SOM ITOZ Ut 5L
732141510 240U "Y20Rg
D030 0] 56-T Wi 1opure
22of Aymaiue 005 TES

ym Aunc) ai sapunasd|
Aluo 3uy spyL 10 JILIIY
BIUDUBIUIOIN LOH |

1004 ‘NISN Z LI LS|
BUA papung dpumim|

TOOTEZS 0L HIEOD O
JHY 390148 AZEHSNIN LHIENH
ONY 3DV1d NHYd LLIYY 3N OGN E|
YS puD 0Z5 HS 10§ TIVHIAO S3Mas|
0202 INIYYND ‘STHAEISISNOH,
NI #1268 'STNATS TILIVHINGD |
BES0STS 'HITNW D6OTT
ZEFTLTE TIVLOL FIOE NI

AINNOD GYVAIHE O1 150D

TYNNNY

SHDMSSO0L) DUD SI2ADG WHIN
Jojuawaspiday sof way jatipng

5431130 pup ‘suaaso (oqopD ¢, qf|

|- EANODQUOIGNT URNDRUOIINE

1DnuuD 000'0S$ D PAIDAILY J0IFING A P - JOERARG DR
HNGIAI] FIUBURIUITY USRRPILEY | HIng waRuaRg in o) soday
Ut 000°0ZT S - Do008E Jof Ay aosar - 40
A [ 3G S50 IFUDEIIUIEN | NOISIAIG INIWLEYIIQ SHHGM
fonuuy Aup Buidnd JoN VN 2178nd ALNNOD OiyATHE |

gy on ;0 ANV SAYM 30 LHE

AV DNINIVLNIVIN S) OHM

“dwind uonediy se yons j1om jo adods ag o)

3PISINO SWY) Aleu|pIoRIXS YOI SAVA VHIN SHIAVE ONY
SATYMSSOUD 40 IDNYNILNIVIN Y04 Vdl & HEMOEML|
A19ISNOLSIY OSTY SI VHIN  "33ueualujew |3A3) Moy

10} G6 | WO OZS JO ||B 10} JUFWaIFe Ue sey Os|e Aunes
PJeASIE 'SIBAA § JOJ AJUNOD S UIIM JUBWSISY [E301aI|
e SBM 313y Al -{vdr) uswsa.Sy usitreyy

Juor e ydnony) (10Qg4) Uonenodsurl § Jo iusuniedan
eplIO(4 343 07 "Aued d|qisuodsay ay) 51 Aunod preas

ALLINT DNYNIINIYW I18ISNOdSIY

SHIAVE

SIILSAS NEHLYDINH

SY3¥Y NTYMSSOND YDI¥E XNV JAULNHEO3A|
ONIJYISANYT AYM 40 LHOIN ANY N¥Ia3i

SIEL NHOM DNVYNIINIVIA 1DIrOHd 30 AUYININNS

SYIUY AVM 4O LHDIH ONY SNVIGIW JAING WA |
WNYNYE S 01 1S3 300148 AJHHIWNH 18380H WOk
[AYMISNYD ANVTS) LLIHYIN 1SIM) 025 21N0OY TUVLS

VIHV DNVNIINIVIN

SISNIdX3 QILVINLIST -

SYIHY IINVYNIINIYIN AINIOV INFNDOTINIATY ONVIS! LLINHIN JAINNOD AYYAIYE JO 14v¥a



20

TRy ssawny . BupuBy ‘el oy TS INEWISIAN) GRIYWISEIQI PR eI
NOISSADSIQ 43ANA NOW NOISSNISI0 ¥IONN NOWY NOISSNOSIT BIGNN AOW NOISSAOSIA YN NOW S SR CARIA K A6 O 14 Ao VN t e i
i 155 190D ZTOT U) DOM: o Pul TI0E u) 4 Bupdesspuny
puat Hupaauiun ulsap o) Bupes ‘ved LY EECHCYCET [P—— sl i g

it 35w S




= G -
| DISTRICT: 2
| ROAD NAME: N. Grove St (Merritt
Park Place)
FROM LIMIT: SR 520
TO LIMIT: W. Merritt Ave
LENGTRH (MILES): 0.56
| WITHIN MIRA LIMITS: Yes
FDOT AGREEMENT: No
FDOT REIMBURSEMENT DOLLARS
(ANNUAL): $0.00
MAINTAINED BY: Outsourced
TERM CONTRACT NO.: (B-6-19-58)
CONTRACT START: 5/31/2019 -
5/30/2022
CONTRACT LENGTH: 3 YRS - 2X1 YR
| RENEWAL
COST: $21,299.76
MULCH COST: $2,590.00
COMMENTS:

| R
I
I

Mifi;éngml:niﬁ,mnéé
4 IIL._I 8. -

s i
AvEangerine Avaz

e ' ¥
¥ 1

| MAINTAINED BY

[ outsourced :
'-iln-House Landscape |
i s Merritt Park Pl - Brevard N. Grove St and McLeod St \V@»E
" SR520 to W Merritt Ave
‘revard County Landscaping Length 0.29 Miles _ s .
CouET Y Merritt Island - District 2 Actual Landscaping Length 0.58 miles This map is for informational
Public Works purposes only.
C. Ireland, February 2021.




M N V% T W e o
"‘irﬂ"11 N ovan | A il ROAD NAME: SR3 (Courtenay Pkwy)
= iefe .Y Yt | FROM LIMIT: SR 520
: 4 .| TO LIMIT: Nevins Ct
| LENGTH (MILES): 1.04
WITHIN MIRA LIMITS: Yes
| FDOT AGREEMENT: Yes (AOD49) Start-
¥| 4/21/2006; Amend #1 12/12/2008
& | FDOT REIMBURSEMENT DOLLARS (ANNUAL):
| $0.00
- | MAINTAINED BY: In-House Landscape
| TERM CONTRACT NO.: N/A
CONTRACT START: N/A
CONTRACT LENGTH: N/A
| COST: $12,312.33
| MULCH COST: $1,110.00
COMMENTS: Initial $300K JPA to instalt
landscaping

"

e N 37 4

Bh - . | i | . y -~
“Total LenFth = 1.04 mile
r { 8.~

I ! | In-House Landscape
| | Qutsourced

_' MIRA Limits
"
1 L SR3 (N Courtenay Pkwy) - ‘ wéﬂ
grevard Brevard County Landscaping S e v
UMNT Y i — Nictri ' This map is for informational
EAE Merritt Island - District 2 s ap‘fjgo(s’;;”oﬁ[;“ el

C. Ireland, February 2021.




S S9(Iw OT1°€ yibua buidedspue jenpy
S3W 67°€ Yabua painses|y
s9|lW €/°€ y3bua Juswaaiby
2bplig JaIey 15eMm
J3AIY eueuRg JO pus 1sam 0} 3b6pug Asuydwny pagqnH Jo pus 3se3

SZ0 £L0 O feeery _.,«.“.w, .
JS AN e Sk

"T20z AMenigad ‘pueji]
g M ‘Ajuo sasodind
|euonewloyul Joy si dew sy

n_l.

'SINIWWOD
00'020°21$ 1SOD HI1MKW
00°00%'0bT$ :1SOD
TYMINIY YA TXZ - SYA £ ‘HLONIT LOVYHLINOD
2202/0€/S - 6T0Z/TE/S 'LUVLS 1DVYLINOD
(85-6T-9-8) "ON 1OVY.LNOD Wy3L
Pa21n0sING :Ag QINIVLNIVIN
S8'¥8T'8T$ :(TVNNNY) SYVTI0A LNIWISINGIWIFY LOad
(04-+695V) SOA :INIWITYOV 10aA
SIA 'SIIWIT VIIW NIHLIM
€2°¢ (STTIW) H1ONTT
abplig JaI[ey 1S9M oAy eueueg ITWIT OL |
96pug Asiydwny HSQNH LTWIT WOYS
0TS ¥S :IWYN avoy
T 1O1Y1SIa

a0 A =2, -
P T e heriSAR R A% -

¢ PHISIQ - pues] LB
buideaspue] AQuno) pleaalg - 0ZSYS

SHJOAA MANA
piersV
\ |

-

SHW) WIIW
paunosINQ
sdeaspuer] asnoH-uf

A8 GINIVINIVIA
puabaiy

3500 AJUno) e buidedspue)

pasueyus ‘ulejuiew 0} pasibe g uyor ‘vl
o sxJed yum agAewr buidedspue| 104 Yd( :SINIWINOD

00°0% :1SOD HOINW
89'666'0T$ 11SOD

TYMINTY A TXT - SYA € ‘HLI9NTT LOVYLNOD
720z/0g/S - 6T0Z/T€/S “LYVLS 1DVYLINOD

(85-61-9-9)

“ON LOVYLINOD WH3L

Pa0INosING A9 GANIVLNIVIA
00'0$ :(IVNNNY) SYVT10AQ INFWISUNGWITY LOCH
(S0 211aNd yum Jou) SBA LINIWITIOV 10ad

SIA {SLIWIT VHIW NIHLIM
$1°0 :(SITIW) HLONTT

(ea.e paddew) [leipiens jo puj 4 IINIT OL
9bpug Assydwny WSQNH LTIWIT WOUA

0¢S ¥S ‘JWVN avod
¢ 1JI¥1SId




Frazier, Lisa

From: Frazier, Lisa

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2016 2:17 PM

To: Behl-Hill, Becky -

Subject: RE: Hubert Humphry Bridge Landscape Maintenance
Importance: High

Becky

I attended a webinar before Christmas with the Director of Florida Redevelopment Association as one of the
presenters. She answered a question pertaining to the relevance of maintenance and stated something along the lines
of “maintenance of projects that receive majority of funding from CRA and are part of the Master Plan are allowed to
receive funding for continued maintenance”. |also reached out to my associate in Titusville who was the former Palm
Bay CRA director too. He states that “Yes, Titusville does pay for maintenance of beautification and infrastructure
improvements. Palm Bay did as well. I recall the old FRA Attorney saying at o conference thot CRA’s can pay for
maintenance of improvements paid for by the CRA as funding the maintenance of the projects protects the CRA’s
investment. The CRA can't pay for maintenance of things that are generally paid for by the City such as existing street
lights, road maintenance, etc. The Titusville FY16 CRA budget budgeted $32,000 for street lights and irrigation
maintenance and $64,000 for right of way maintenance. When | was with Palm Bay, the CRA funded maintenance and
repair of street beautification improvements {landscaping, signage, lighting, etc.) as well as storm water retention pond
maintenance........ In Titusville the CRA is paying the entire maintenance costs. in Palm Bay, the CRA paid the entire cost
unless the maintenance went over budget then the City paid for the additional cost. The Public Works Dept. who did the

maintenance in-house picked up the cost.”

In addition, | reviewed the Statute and found that 163.370 repeatedly mentions support for investment into
beautification projects/improvements/repair. The Master Plan includes the roadway beautification projects that we
have constructed. We also have an agreement of county services that require reimbursement for services, such as
maintenance. Therefore, based on this knowledge and the fact that we have two JPA’s with FDOT that state MIRA is
responsible for maintenance of the beautification projects, we would like to proceed with a formal agreement with
Brevard County to compensate them into the future for beautification projects that may require maintenance by Public
Works or Parks and Rec. This way, a portion of the tax increment dollars will go towards “funding the maintenance of
the projects protects the CRA’s investment” even after MIRA is gone!

Please assist me in pulling together this document. 1am meeting with John and Jack next week (Jan 20™) to discuss
further. Your presence would be helpful if you are available.

Again, | am available to meet with you at Viera this Thursday afternoon or next Friday morning.

Sincerely,

Lisa Leger Frazier

Executive Director
MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELDPMENT AGENCY

24



After much discussion with the department heads and D2, I would like to request that MIRA agree to perform a one-
time clean up on the bridge, just to get it done, and request that Public Works make the continued maintenance part of
their contract with FDOT. The cost quoted by M&M last year is still valid for this year. They have stated they can clean
up the mess that is there for $760.00, Please see response from Jack Masson below regarding Parks and Rec’s
determination. D2 agrees that maintenance of the FDOT roadway should be public works as part of their ongoing
agreement with FDOT.

Please advise if | have the authorization to hire M&M for a one time clean-up of the Hubert Humphry Bridge landscape
prior to the Public Works including this in the existing SR 520 maintenance contract.

Lisa Leger Frazier

Executive Director
MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELDPMENT AGENCY

2575 N. Courtenay Parkway, Room 207
Merritt Island, Fl 32934

Phone #321-454-6610

Email: Lisa.Frazier@brevardcounty.us




R aLAND

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APRIL 29, 2021

ITEM III. A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: MIRA Budget 2021-2022 Budget

PROIJECT: Proposed CIP Projects

Requested Action: Review & Approve

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached:

3(0



MIRA PROPOSED CIP PROJECTS FY 2021-2022

PROJECT NAME: Amphitheatre at Veterans Memorial Park (VMC)
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $2,270,833

TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $1,000,000

OTHER FUNDING: $1,270,833 (Tourism Development Council)

The Veterans’ Memorial Park Amphitheatre will serve the Veterans and Citizenry of Brevard
County as a quality outdoor venue for Veterans, Tourism and Community events. The outdoor
venue area will support a high quality engineered bandshell and will host up to 5,000 persons for
a broad category of Veterans and Community oriented events. The project is the culmination of
MIRA'’s involvement in making a series of permanent improvements to this unique park managed
by and honoring our Veterans. Cumulative annual attendance at the Park, the Veterans’
Museum, and the Amphitheatre, is projected to be in excess of 100,000 persons.

PROJECT NAME: Veterans’ Memorial Park Phase Ill Improvements
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $1,050,000

TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $1,000,000

OTHER FUNDING: $ 50,000 (Private Donors)

The Veterans’ Memorial Park most recent Phase Il enhancements included engineering and site
planning with necessary infrastructure such as parking, sidewalks, walking bridges and
pathways. Phase lll improvements will include, implementation of a landscape plan with
irrigation, and will include plantings that honor the Veterans and provides for designated areas
for memorial trees, benches throughout the park and sites for the future Vietnam Veteran
Memorial wall, future Medal of Honor monumentation and bandshell/ amphitheatre. In addition,
electrical, water, and sanitary lines infrastructure, to serve vendors, guests at events, including
installation of pavers marking the future Medal of Honor Tribute Memorial, Fitness Trail, and
decorative security lighting. These enhancements will be completed through matching funds,
partnerships with Brevard County Parks and Recreation, Brevard County Facilities, Veteran
Groups and generous philanthropic entities

PROJECT NAME: MIRA MERRITT ISLAND BRANDED BUS SHELTER
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $380,000

TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $165,000

OTHER FUNDING: $165,000 (Space Coast Area Tranist Federal Grants)

In an overall effort to prevent slum and blight, address areas of safety, improve the quality of
access to public transportation, enabling employment for those without use of private autos, this
project is to facilitate the continuation of development, implementation and installation of four (4)
new user-friendly quality bus shelters with identifying markers for the Merritt Island
Redevelopment Area along the two main Merritt Island corridors, S.R. 3 and S.R. 520.

Average Daily traffic volumes along these corridors combined exceeds 70,000 trips. The
infrastructure benefits of bus shelter “stations” will promote multi modal transportation by
providing bike racks, less visual blight by controlling litter with composting trash receptacles and
cigarette disposal systems. Added solar lighting will deter crime and vandalism and promote
safety in slum and blighted areas adjacent to the main corridors. This project is in partnership
with the Space Coast TPO and Space Coast Area Transit.



PROJECT NAME: Griffis’ Landing Access — Fuel Docks and Dredging
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $ 500,000
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $ 500,000

Ongoing Facilities improvements at Griffis landing in conjunction with installation of a new fuel
tank and the existing pump out station will increase public waterfront usage, adding a sustaining
economic benefit for the Landing and its businesses. This project will include a site needs
analysis for signage for the fuel dock, lighting for safety, emergency access and ADA compliant
access. The dredged depth of the waterway entrance and the consideration of boat traffic lighting
and aids to navigation are also enhancements that will be considered to encourage visitors and
enable a safe approach. Interest in a commercial marina mooring field infrastructure development
is a natural step as it was a viable working marina for many years. All feasible constructions are
anticipated to occur subsequent to the fuel dock installation.

PROJECT NAME: Median 520 East- Safety Median Expansion
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $ 356,810
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $ 204,935
FDOT GRANT $ 151,875

MIRA has diligently worked for many years with FDOT to apply for the available landscaping
grants for the safety medians installed along the highways through FDOT. The last of the safety
medians for 520 within MIRA'’s jurisdiction are going in next summer. MIRA has been working
with FDOT since 2018 to apply for the available grants. The medians are smaller in area and the
project is smaller in scope. Anticipated installation will not occur until 2022.

PROJECT NAME: South Courtenay Cone to Fortenberry Road Widening
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $ $2,200,000
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $ 1,300,000

TOTAL COUNTY FUNDING: $ 800,000 (From Impact Fees)

This project is a partnership of the implementation of solutions for road safety and capacity
issues. A perceived need for stormwater improvement along the west side of South Courtenay
and a roadway enhancement for the segment that contains a large linear median on the east
side approaching Cone Road, as you drive from north to south. This median contains a
pedestrian sidewalk. Enhancements of this area is a supplemental but visually essential to finish
the work done to Cone Road. It is anticipated that public input, existing condition elements,
engineering and design of these components will be underway and completed in concert with the
development of the commercial parcel on the west side of south Courtenay Parkway and the
road widening.

PROJECT NAME: Merritt Square Mall Town Centre/Fortenberry Relocation
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $ 175,000 (Architecture, Engineering, & Due Diligence)
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $ 175,000

This project, in collaboration with the Merritt Square Mall property owners and partners including
many Brevard County departments, will update and enhance the conceptual redevelopment plan
for what has been identified as the “new downtown” for Merritt Island. Included in this concept
plan is the completion of stormwater elements for connection of the Mall property to the
Stormwater Treatment Lake at the Veterans’ Memorial Park, feasibility and probable costs of the
relocation of Fortenberry Road and an overlay of alternative development standards to facilitate
the redevelopment of the Mall and surrounding areas.

24



PROJECT NAME: North of S.R. 520 Stormwater Project
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $75,000 (Engineering, Permitting, Due Diligence)
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $75,000

This project will facilitate engineering and design of a stormwater management project and a
water quality issue specifically for the sub-basin north of S.R. 520, east of Plumosa Street to the
Sykes Creek area. This area lacks significant stormwater treatment capacity. The large asphalted
and blighted area south of the large “Health Plex”, which is the location of the new hospital is
highly anticipated. This project will be a solution for the flooding and safety issues at the
intersection of Plumosa Street and East Merritt Avenue and could have an impact on the health
of the Sykes Creek Indian River Lagoon Basin directly to the east and the Ulamay Wildlife
Sanctuary to the northeast of the area.

PROJECT NAME: Plumosal/S. S.R. 520 Stormwater Pipe Extension
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $50,000 (Engineering, Permitting, Due Diligence)
TOTAL MIRA FUNDING: $50,000

This project is to facilitate the study and engineering of piping stormwater and making the
connection of properties at the intersection of S. R. 520 and Plumosa Street to the Stormwater
Treatment Lake at the Veteran’s Memorial Park. Approximately seven acres are anticipated for
redevelopment and lack this critical connection that will facilitate redevelopment of the blighted
and aging commercial properties along Plumosa Street. Incentivizing the use of the stormwater
ponds by providing the infrastructure for piping the stormwater allows better use of the land for
redevelopment.

Doc’s Bait House: Griffis Landing Structural Improvements —Project is Underway and
should be completed in the current fiscal year. $361,510

Redevelopment efforts of our remaining working waterfront area offer potential for economic
and recreational opportunities, while underscoring the connections between Merritt Island’s
community’s culture, built environment, and our natural resources. This infrastructure project
will make it possible to preserve and enhance the historic “doc’s bait house” structure at
Brevard County’s only State of Florida designated working waterfront. The aging structure has
suffered multiple hurricanes and exists in a waterfront area subjected to marine related decay.
Roof reconstruction and commercial grade impact windows will extend the life of the historic
structure and improve safety issues.

eyl



LENTLSND
MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APRIL 29, 2021

ITEM Iil.B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM:

RZK Architects

PROJECT: Amphitheatre Project

Requested Action: Review & Approve

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached:

Yo



Lallo, Larry — —
From: John Zwick <John.Zwick@architectsrzk.com>

Sent: Friday, April 23, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Lallo, Larry

Cc: Lawry, Timothy L; Dunlap, Michael

Subject: P1164 MIRA (VETS) - Amphitheater Concept Site Plan

Attachments: P1164 MIRA - Amphitheater Area (dtd. 04-23-2021).pdf; FBC - Toilet Fixtures Chart.pdf

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] DO NOT CLICK links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Larry,
As promised, attached is a rough CONCEPT SITE PLAN which depicts the facility which we discussed at the previous special Board meeting.

Consider the following as you review the plan:

Areas1 &2

Area 1 + Area 2 would accommodate a crowd of 2,000 persons seated on blankets and generally spread out on a grassy surface.

Area 1 + Area 2 would accommodate a crown of roughly 3,600 persons with them all standing.

Area 1 + Area 2 with portable bleachers / grandstands in the Area 2 location would accommodate 5,000 persons. Those in Area 1 would be standing, or seated
in a snug manner.

Restroom Facilities

Fixed restrooms shown would accommodate 2,000 persons (1,000 Men + 1,000 Women).

From the attached chart that equates to:

Women = 25 Water Closets and 7 Lavatories

Men = 14 Water Closets / Urinals and 5 Lavatories

If the waste is to be handled via a septic system | would presume the field could be located in Area 2 but this will need to be verified by Bussen-Mayer Engineers.
You’'ll need additional portable toilets for crowds which exceed 2,000 persons unless you're able to demonstrate the toilet facilities serve more people.

| would suspect that could be accomplished by having someone maintain a count of the available toilet fixtures during breaks in the venue.

Venders
We've shown an area for Food & Drink Venders to locate their vehicles.

Stage

Y



The stage is shown with additional areas for the performers.
Behind the stage area is a location for the performer’s vehicles (travel trailers).
Vehicles which carry equipment for the performers would need to park elsewhere once their “roadies” have unloaded and set up the perfermance equipment.

Distribute all of this information to the Board Members.
If you need me at the meeting let me know when and where and hopefully it will fit into my schedule.

Respectfully,

John C. Zwick, Principal
Architect, LEED AP
\.321.631.8039 | O 321.693.5006
& john.zwick@architectsrzk.com

15

ARCHITECTS RZK, INC.
600 Florida Ave, Suite 201, Cocoa, FL 32922

www.ARCHITECTSRZK.com
John C. Zwick, AR0009527

m Please do not print this e-mail unless necessary

YL



METAL OF HONOR PARK

T

..__...ﬂ.i_:...:-_ TTTT i )
LT LT
ADDITIONAL / RELOCATED W = RESTROOMS (FOR
PARKING AS BUFFER BETWEEN / : .l\_\\ 2,000 ATTENDEES)
EVENTS AND HONOR PARK 7 s h
h .
0
]
W AREA 2
¢
. iy
VENDER VEHICLES AREA r/

: _ - EXPAND STAGE
.. FACILITIES FOR
3 " . PERFORMERS

__ ; - SPACES FOR
_ PERFORMER
[ VEHICLES

a,..o CONCEPT SITE PLAN i

SCALE: 1" = 40' WHEN PLOTTED ON 18" X 24" PAPER

04-23-2021



FIXTURES, FAUCETS AND FIXTURE FITTINGS

TABLE 403.1 —continued
MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED PLUMBING FIXTURES?
(See Sections 403.1.1 and 403.2)

WATER CLOSETS DRINKING
(URINALS: SEE FOUNTAIN
SECTION 419.2) LAVATORIES (SEE
BATHTUBS/ | SECTION
NO. [CLASSIFICATION|OCCUPANCY DESCRIPTION MALE FEMALE | MALE | FEMALE | SHOWERS 410) OTHER
Coliseums, arenas, | per 75 1 per 40 for
skating rinks, pools and |for the the first
tennis courts for indoor |first 1,500 [ 1,520 and 1
sporting events and and | per |per 60 for | !per| 1 per 1 service
-4 . — | per .
A activities 120 for the [the 200 150 per 1,000 sink
remainder |remainder
exceeding [exceeding
1 1,500 1,520
Assembly -
(cont.) Stadiums, amusement |1 per 75 1 per 40 for
parks, bleachers and for the the first
grandstands for outdoor |first 1,500 | 1,520 and |
sporting events and and I per [per 60 for |1per| 1 per 1 service
-5 ey — 1 I .
A activities 120 for the |the 200 150 REALag sink
remainder |remainder
exceeding |exceeding
1,500 1,520
Buildings for the
oo
Emerservices volying | | Pt 25 for the first 50 | first 80 and 1 | service
2 Business B . ’ ©1 and 1 per 50 for the per 80 for the — L per 100 g lc
merchandise, office . . . sink’
e remainder exceeding 50 |  remainder
buildings, banks, exceeding 80
light industrial and £
similar uses
ional faciliti 1 servi
8 Educational E Fducational facilitics 1 per 50 1 per 50 — I per 100 g;lnvklce
Structures in which
occupants are engaged . )
; _ - t .
4 F.actmy 'zmd F-l'and F-2 |in work fabricating, 1 per 100 | per 100 e o I per 400 ! service
industrial , 411) sink
assembly or processing
of products or materials
g [Residential care 1 per 10 [ per 10 Lper8 | 1 per 100 | ! SCrvice
sink
Hospitals, ambulatory | service
nursing home care 1 per room® 1 per room® | per 15 1 per 100 | sink per
recipient floor
I-2 Employees, other than
1 per 25 l 35 — 1 100 —
residential care® pet per per
[Visitors, other than I per 75 I per 100 == Lpersoo | —
§ Institutional residential care
" b "
Prisons 1 per cell | percell L per 15 | per 100 I service
sink
13 Reformitories, l .
i detention centers, and 1 per 15 [ per 15 Lper IS | I per 100 S:i:'k'ce
correctional cenlers®
Employees® 1 per 25 | per 35 — 1 per 100 =
L4 Adult day care and child | per 15 1 per 15 | I per 100 1 service
day care sink
{continued)
20

FLORIDA BUILDING CODE — PLUMBING, 6th EDITION (2017)

X



D

ERAITT
~=REDEYELOPMENT AGENCT et

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APRIL 29, 2021

ITEM IIL.C.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Signage

PROJECT: Merritt Park Place — 55 N. Courtenay & SR 520

Requested Action: Review

Summary Explanation & Background:

e A survey has been obtained for 55 N. Courtenay.
e Interest in using the same material and logo style as the bus shelters recently installed.
e Simple style and wayfinding labels such as “Merritt Park Place Business District”
e Work with Facilities for pricing, sourcing materials and installation.
Fiscal Impact:
Exhibits Attached:

HS



MERRITT ISLAN
== REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ==

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APRIL 29, 2021

ITEM Il1.D.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM:  Signage Proposal

PROJECT: 2575 N. Courtenay Parkway, Government Center

Requested Action: Review & Approve

Summary Explanation & Background:

MIRA is onsite and therefore we can fund our own onsite signage
Where Dreams Are Launched Sign Replacement with MIRA logo Added

Request from D2
Work with Facilities for pricing, sourcing materials and installation

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached:




MERRITT ISLAN
== REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ==

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

April 29, 2021
ITEM IV.A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: U Haul Update
PROJECT: U Haul Zoning CUP and Site Plan Review

Requested Action:  Update

Summary Explanation & Background:

Situation update with U Haul:

1. Pursuant to an internet search and anonymous report, U Haul is renting storage units at this time, and they are
operating at the site for truck rental purposes.

2. Because the Publix building had a former Certificate of Occupancy (CQ), the compliance measure of enforcement
of a CO, does align with the way the project is structured.

3. The Use of Storage is/was is an aliowable use permitted under the existing zoning.

4. So asto the Storage land use, the CO as a compliance measure does not fit well, when all of the internal
improvement conditions as to construction, fire and electrical, etc. for the storage units, and those types of issues,
U-Haul has complied with.

5. Atpresent there are no prohibitions to keep U Haul from renting storage units at this time.

6. The Truck Rental Land Usage is a different matter, and technically U Haul should not be renting trucks or dropping
off trucks from that area, if they are not in compliance with the CUP.

7. Anonymous complaints are allowed in District 2, in regard to the Truck Rental Land Usage, being in noncompliance
with the CUP conditions.

8. Itisthe Truck Rental Land Use that could have issues as to U-Haul’s compliance with that land use on that site.

9. Akey concern of the MIRA Board was the non-compliance with the Veterans aluminum perforated silhouette
screening as being incongruent with what is stated in the conditions of the conditional use permit.

10. The writing of the conditions placed are not likely to be held as strong or distinctive enough, as the language
allows for “minor deviations” as to the silhouettes.

11. So then to enforce same we would get into interpretive issues of what is a major deviation versus what is a minor
deviation from the conditional use condition, despite what the meeting minutes show.

12. Realistically, BoCC could call for a revocation of the Conditional Use, on the basis of the interpretation, as to was
what U Haul did a minor deviation, which could lead to a lawsuit.

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: Qr\




MERRITT ISLAND
== HEQEVELOPMENT AGENCY wmt

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
APRIL 29, 2021

ITEM IV.B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Creative Services RFQ

PROJECT: Create and Implement Web Site and Social Media Strategy

Requested Action: Update on status of Purchasing RFP and new Committee Members

Summary Explanation & Background:

The County Purchasing, Risk Management, Legal, and County Manager, has now approved various aspects of our RFP
process. The RFP shall now enter into the public advertising process and could begin as early as May 6, 2021
following the statute approved qualified competitive bidding process based on qualifications of proposers, and
subsequently entering into negotiated contractual agreements with selected awardees using an independent committee
process.

MIRA has numerous Communications, and Social Media needs in order to effectively carry out its mission.

State Statute requires MIRA to have a web site, posting: at a minimum an annual audit report, annual adopted budget,
annual performance data/ metrics, digital illustrative map of the CRA redevelopment plan, illustration of our
redevelopment area geography, legal description of our boundaries, total acreage information, and to post all changes
within 60 days of any changes, publish an annual report, and post essential information about our Board members,
minutes, and agendas.

In addition, MIRA has a responsibility to share our accomplishments, and a business responsibility to improve and
monitor our marketing of available sites that are available for lease and redevelopment, improve how we functionally
provide demographics, site and market information to site selectors, and clearly communicate our grant programs and
infrastructure projects to the business, development and redevelopment community. MIRA needs to also improve
accountability/awareness of the work of MIRA, the Merritt Island quality of life for residents, businesses, and visitors,
and build our sense of Community. This work needs to be digital, professionally accomplished and maintained on a
regular basis.

At the February 28, 2019 MIRA Board Meeting, it was agreed that MIRA develop a concerted effort, towards
improving our Communications Multi Media and Outreach strategy utilizing modern digital technologies. There was
consensus with the Board, and affirmation for Director Lallo to proceed to the proposal stage.

At the December 10, 2020 MIRA Board Meeting the Board agreed on a price range of $50,000 - $75,000, as the initial
probable cost range to develop a high-level web site and social media outreach presentation with the above components
and features.

Fiscal Impact: $50,000 - $75,000

Exhibits Attached:

U9



MERRITT IBLAND
== RLOEYELQFFENT AGENCY ma

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM IV.C.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM:  Charitable Gift Agreement

PROJECT: Scope of work for Charitable Gift Agreement at Veterans’ Memorial Park

Requested Action: Review & Approve

Summary Explanation & Background:

SCOPE OF WORK

Additional planting design for the Veteran’s Memorial Park includes the layout and
specifications for a proposed Bamboo Garden and the planting of additional tropical flowering
shade trees This work is proposed to occur along the western side of the stormwater ponds
and adjacent the recently completed parking lot and foot bridges.

Susan Hall Landscape Architecture, Inc. will prepare a detailed plan showing location,
species, size and quantities for proposed trees and bamboos. Botanical and common names
will be listed, and planting details provided. Written specifications will be provided.

A establishment period maintenance plan will be provided in the form of a monthly chart,
which will include a recommended watering schedule, until the time that automatic irrigation is

installed.

A bid form will be provided for bid solicitation and oversight, to be provided by others.
Up to three site visits will be provided, on as as-needed basis, during installation of the

landscaping.

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached:




MERRITT ISLAN]
== REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ==

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM IV.D.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: TDC Amphitheatre Grant Agreement

PROJECT: Agreement for Bandshell/Amphitheatre

Requested Action: Status Update

Summary Explanation & Background:

The Agreement has been executed and is in force, and attached. Key critical elements the Board should be

aware of are highlighted.

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached: Agreement attached

<0



CAPITALFACILITIES GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
BREVARD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (SPACE COAST OFFICE OF TOURISM)
AND
THE (MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - MIRA) FOR
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A BANDSHELL AND AMPITHEATRE

This Grant Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between the following Parties: The Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County, Florida,
a political subdivision of the State of Florida, Space Coast Office of Tourism (hereinafter the
“GRANTOR"), and the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA), a community
redevelopment agency established by the Brevard County Board of County Commissioners
pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (hereinafter the “GRANTEE”). MIRA’s focus is on the
removal of slum and blighted conditions, and the development, infrastructure, aesthetics, and
economic development issues of the Merritt Island community within the CRA area.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Local Option Tourist Development Act, the GRANTOR has by
resolution and ordinance, Ordinance No. 86-25, and subsequent amendments thereto, levied
and imposed tourist development taxes throughout Brevard County, Florida; established the
Brevard County Tourist Development Council; and implemented a tourist development plan for
the use of funds derived from such taxes as set forth in Sections 102-116 through 102-125,
Brevard County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 125.0104(5)( a)1.a, Florida Statutes; and Section 102-
119(of the Brevard County Code, the GRANTOR may authorize tourist development tax
revenues out of the 35 percent of first two pennies of the levy earmarked to acquire, construct,
extend, enlarge, remodel, repair, improve, maintain, operate, or promote a publicly owned and
operated outdoor auditorium within the boundaries of the County where the tax is levied; and

WHEREAS, the GRANTEE has requested a 1,270,833 capital facilities grant to increase
the number of Tourists brought to Brevard County and to encourage the economic growth of
the area; and

WHEREAS, the capital facilities grant funding will be used by the GRANTEE for
construction of an outside venue with an acoustically engineered band shell of approximately
8,000 square feet and amphitheater with an open spectator area of two and a half acres
accommodating approximately 5,000 spectators located in the center of the newly expanded
66-acre Veteran's Memorial Park located in Central Brevard County on Merritt Island; and

Page 1 of 12

MIRA Veteran’s Memorial Center Cap Fac Gram

5



WHEREAS, the Tourist Development Cauncil recommended GRANTOR approve the
$1,270,833 Capital Facilities Grant at its meeting on September 23, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2020, the GRANTOR found that GRANTEEs facility was for a
proper purpose to acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, remodel, repair, improve, maintain,
operate, or promote a publicly owned and operated outdoor auditorium within the county and
qualified for an expenditure of Tourist Development Tax funds; and

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2020, the GRANTOR approved GRANTEE for a $1,270,833
Capital Facilities Grant for the construction of a bandshell and amphitheater located in
Veteran’s Memorlal Park on Merritt Island, FL.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The Recitals above are true and correct and incorporated into this Grant.
2. Definitions. The Parties agree to the following definitions:

a. The TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL refers to the advisory council appointed by the
Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County, Florida, pursuant to Section
125.0104(4)(e), Florida Statutes, and Section 102-120, Brevard County Code of
Ordinances.

b. The SPACE COAST OFFICE OF TOURISM, refers to the Brevard County Tourist
Development Office, a department of the Brevard County government. The Space Coast
Office of Tourlsm will administer this grant on behalf of GRANTOR.

C. The MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (MIRA), refers to the community
redevelopment agency established by the Brevard County Board of County
Commissioners pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes to prevent blight and
deterioration and to protect and enhance public expenditures with the Community
Redevelopment Area.

d. The term PROJECT refers to the Project described in paragraph 3 of this Agreement.

3. Description of Project

The project is to construct an outside auditorium venue with an acoustically engineered band
shell on publicly owned Brevard County land and under the management control of the Brevard
County Parks and Recreation Department or MIRA. The venue will be approximately 8,000

Page 2 0f 12

MIRA Veteran's Memorial Center Cap Fag Grant

gL



square feet and amphitheater with an open spectator area of two and a half acres
accommodating approximately 5,000 spectators located in the center of the newly expanded
66-acre Veteran's Memorial Park located in Central Brevard County on Merritt Island. The
Veteran's Memorial Amphitheatre would be centrally located inside the existing multi-use
Veteran's Memorial Park on Merritt Island. The existing park is located directly south of State
Road 520 with access via Sykes Creek Parkway which terminates at the entrance of the
Veteran's Memorial Park; 400 S. Sykes Creek Parkway. The three-acre plus amphitheater
greenspace for the proposed outdoor venue to support an auditorium or bandshell, is located
to the rear of the existing Veteran’s Center and Memorial Museum, Currently, the annual
visitors to the museum and park is 105,000 a year. The projected annual visitation of the future
facility including park and museum constructed from this funding is 273,888, with 60% being
from outside Brevard County.

4. Grant.

a. Grant Award and Expiration Date. The GRANTEE must commence construction on the
bandshell and amphitheater on or before October 6, 2023, or this grant Is void. Upon
project start, GRANTEE may submit any financial documentation it has to GRANTOR for
the reimbursement of its incurred expenses to construct the bandshell and
amphitheater in an amount not to exceed $1,270,833. Reimbursements will be made
according to the allowable costs as listed in the Capital Facilities Grant Guidelines. This
grant represents a portion of the total project cost. All reimbursements must be
received within six (6) years of award by the GRANTOR or October 6, 2026. GRANTEE
may request an extension on both the construction start date and the construction
finish date from the GRANTOR in writing. After the expiration date, the grant is expired
and GRANTOR owes no further obligation to GRANTEE of any kind under this
Agreement.

b. GRANTEE agrees to advertise its venue and its programming to out-of-Caunty Tourists.

c. This Agreement is contingent upon the availability of adequate funding in the 35% of
the first two pennies of capital facility tourist development tax funds and subject to any
limitations provided by Section 125.0104, Florida Statutes, and Section 102-117(a) and
Section 102-119(3)c of the Brevard County Code, as both may be amended from time to
time. Should funds no longer be available, the GRANTOR shall provide written notice
thereof to the GRANTEE. The Parties agree that this grant shall NOT be paid from
GRANTOR's non-tourist development related revenues.

d. GRANTEE agrees and understands that all funding authorized through this Agreement
shall be used only for eligible activities in accordance with State and local iaw, and this

Page 3 of 12

MIRA Veteran's Memorial Center Cap l'ac Grant



Agreement. GRANTEE further warrants that it is a Community Redevelopment Agency
created pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 163,

e. GRANTEE warrants that Brevard County is the fee simple owner of the real property
upon which the GRANTEE will perform, or cause to be performed, the construction,
remodeling, and improvements which are the subject of this grant. GRANTEE warrants
that Brevard County has given GRANTEE all necessary permissions to construct the
bandshell and amphitheater and any other activities permitted by this grant.

f.  Termination of Grant. Upon payment of the full amount of the grant, the Partles agree
that the Agreement is terminated and the Parties owe no further obligations to each
other relating to this grant agreement, except as follows, All provisions survive that are
necessary to enforce paragraph 4.b., 12 and 13 for five years following payment of the
grant.

5. Payment Procedures.

a.  The payout schedule for the Grant is contingent on the occurrence of the following
events detailed below. GRANTEE must submit adequate documentation to the Space
Coast Office of Tourism as follows:

i.  Anexecuted copy of this Agreement.

ii.  Documentation of receipt of all necessary permitting from all appropriate
regulatory bodies evidencing that all construction activities at the Project Site
have conformed to applicable law.

iii.  Submission of Adequate Documentation showing the work was performed on
the publicly owned Brevard County property. Documentation will be submitted
as required by the Office of Tourism’s payment policies listed in v. below.

iv.  Documentation/Photograph of installation of a plaque, as described in
paragraph 6b, that the project was partially funded with a capital facility grant
from the Brevard County Tourist Development Council thraugh Tourist
Development Tax.

V. GRANTEE Reimbursement Process - GRANTEE may apply for reimbursement
upon submission of Tourism supplied cover invoice and detailed backup
showing proof of payment to include design, materials, subcontract, labor, or
other related construction costs.

b. Project Completion Requirements. Upon completion of the entirety of the project,
GRANTEE will provide GRANTOR with the following documentation.

i.  Acopy of the Certificate of Completion allowing occupancy of the bandshell and

amphitheater,

Page 4 of 12

MIRA Veleran's Memorial Cenler Cap Fag Grant

59



ii.  Photographs of the completed construction in a jpg or .tif format.

li.  Afinal project report (1-2 pages) within 60 days of project completion that shall
at a minimum include the GRANTEE's name, Project name, Project
location/address, final cost and Tourism Grant amount, and a brief Project
summary that includes how the venue is or will be marketed to Tourists.

iv.  GRANTEE shall provide the GRANTOR annual room nights and attendance for 5
years after project completion. The Space Coast Office of Tourlsm may assist
with gathering cellular location data if requested.

c. Ifaquestion arises as to the sufficiency of GRANTEE’s documentation, the Parties agree
that the Space Coast Office of Tourism Executive Director shall make the final
determination on the sufficiency of the documentation.

d. The Parties agree the GRANTOR will reject submissions for reimbursement for items
not related the scope detailed above and according to the allowable and unallowable
costs listed in the capital facilities guidelines. Further, grant funds may not be used to
prepare grant applications or for routine maintenance.

6. Promotion & Reporting Reguirements.

a. The Parties agree that both Parties may advertise, promote or otherwise list this Project
in either Party’s promotional materials.

b. All marketing and promotional advertising, including website or internet advertising of
the GRANTEE that contains sponsorship information, shall refer to the Brevard County
Tourist Development Councll as a sponsor of the GRANTEE.

¢. The GRANTEE will provide GRANTOR with quarterly reports to show how the overall
Project is progressing. The Parties agree that both parties are entities subject to
Florida’s public records laws under Chapter 119 Florida Statutes and all documentation
shall be subject to disclosure absent a statutory exception.

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.
a. This Agreement shall not obligate or make GRANTOR or the GRANTEE liable to any Party
other than the Parties to this Agreement. Oversight of GRANTEE staff will be the
responsibility of the GRANTEE board of directors.

Page 5 of 12

MIRA Veteran’s Memorial Center Cap Fac Grant



b. If any provision of this Agreement Is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall
not be affected if such remainder continues to conform to the terms and requirements of
applicable law.

c. The Parties agree that, in the case of a dispute, the parties will first work to resolve the
dispute informally. If this does not resolve the dispute the County Manager’s Office with
the assistance of the County Attorney’s Office may come in to resolve the dispute. Prior
to legal action, alternative dispute resolution methods shall be used. In case of legal
action, each Party agrees to resolve the dispute in accordance with any agreement
between Brevard County and MIRA and any applicable laws regarding CRA's and thelr
creating agencies.

d. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local laws, and Is responsihble for
any and all permits, fees, and licenses necessary to perform the Grant. GRANTEE will
ensure all Contractors are appropriately licensed to do the work required. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by GRANTOR of any requirements for local
permits, fees, and licenses.

€. GRANTEE agrees it shall not knowingly engage the services of any person who is an
unauthorized alien worker, thus constituting a violation of the employment provisions
contained in 8 U.5.C. Section 1324e (Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality
Act “INA”).  GRANTOR shall consider GRANTEE’s intentional employment of
unauthorized aliens as grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

f. The waiver by the GRANTOR of any of GRANTEE's obligations or duties under this
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other obligation or duty of the other party
under this Agreement, nor shall a waiver of any such obligation or duty constitute a
continuing waiver of that obligation of duty.

8. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.
(a) Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party of the negligent acts and
omissions of its own employees and agents in the performance of this Agreement, ta
the extent permitted by law.

(b) The County, at no time, shall assume the obligations or undertake the responsibility
for the completion of any contract or compliance with any law or rule imposed on the
Grantee. The Grantee, to the extent allowed by law, shall

hold harmless the County, its officers, agents, and employees, against any and all

Page 6 of 12

MIRA Veteran's Memorial Center Cap Fac Grant



10.

b)

c)

d)

claims, losses, liabilities, or expenditures of any kind, including court costs,
attorney's fees, and expenses arising out of any contract to be performed by the
Agency, any document prepared by the Agency, or any undertaking imposed on the
Agency by law.

C. Both Parties indemnity and liability obligations hereunder shall be subject to the Parties’
right of sovereign immunity and limited to the extent of the protections of and limitations on
damages as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing in this Agreement is
intended to inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which
would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or by operation of law.
Nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of the Parties’ sovereign immunity, The Parties
acknowledge specific consideration has been exchanged for this provision.

Amendment, Assignment of Agreement. Amendments to this Agreement may be initiated
by either Party. Amendments shall be formally ratified and approved by written
amendment to this Agreement by both Parties. The GRANTEE shall not assign any portion
of this agreement without the wrltten permission of GRANTOR.

Insurance. GRANTEE agrees to procure and malntain Insurance as required by federal,
state, and local law and as required by any other agreement between GRANTOR and
GRANTEE. If the GRANTEE hires contractors or vendor, GRANTEE must ensure the
contractor or vendor has proof of the insurance below. The policy limits listed below are
required and to be considered minimum amounts:

General Liability Insurance policy with a $1,000,000 combined single limit for each
occurrence to include personal injury, contractual liability, and errors and omissions
coverage.

Auto Liability Insurance policy which includes coverage for all owned, non-owned and
rented vehicles with a $1,000,000 combined single limit for each occurrence, as well as Full
Coverage Vehicle Insurance to include Liability (as above), Collision, Comprehensive, PIP
and Uninsured Motorists,

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance policy covering all employees of
contractor or vendor that work under this Grant, as required by law. Coverage shall be for
all employees directly or indirectly engaged in work on this Grant, with limits of coverage
as required by State law.

Employee Dishonesty/Crime Insurance ~ The contractor or vendor will provide coverage
greater than or equal to sixty-five percent (65%) of the amount of the TDT funding,

Page 7 of 12

MIRA Vetcran's Memorial Cenler Cap lac Grant

\5/’/7



11.

12,

13.

14,

specifically to insure against TDT funding loss.

Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater — The contractor shall provide “all risk” property insurance
on any construction, additions, and machinery and equipment. The amount of the insurance
shall be no less than the estimated replacement value at the time of the applicant/facility
operator’s final acceptance of said improvements. In the event that the grantee does not
work with a contractor on the funded project, the applicant/facility operator must purchase
or add Builders’ Risk to their current property program (Commercial General Liability). The
Builders Risk policy must remain active throughout all current wark related to the proposed
project and must not terminate until the final acceptance of a contractor’s waork, all
vendors’ installations, final release of occupancy, and final acceptance at completion of the
project has been made by the applicant/facility operator.

Terminatlon. If either Party fails or refuses to perform any of the provisions of this
Agreement, or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the Grant provisions within 60 days of a
written notice, following the 60 days notice either Party may notify the other Party in
writing of the nonperformance and terminate this Agreement or such part of the
agreements as to which there has been a delay or a failure to properly perform. Such
termination is effective upon the Party’s receipt of the Notice of Termination. Upon
termination, GRANTOR has no further obligation to GRANTEE.

Right to Audit Records. In performance of this Agreement both parties shall retain all
records as required by governmental entities under Florida Law.

Public Records Disclosures. Parties agrees that Florida has broad public disclosure laws,
and that any written communications with either party, to include emails, email addresses,
a copy of this Agreement, and any supporting documentation related to this Agreement are
subject to public disclosure upon request, unless otherwise exempt or confidential under
Florida Statute.

Public records are defined as all documents, papers, letters, maps, books, tapes,
photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing software, or other material,

pursuant to law or ordinance or in connection with the transaction of official business by
any agency.

Employment Eligibility Verification (E-Verify). The Parties acknowledge that both Parties are
subject to the Employment Eligibility Verification (E-Verify) as required by federal, state, and
local law and palicy.

Pagc 8 of 12

MIRA Veteran's Memorial Center Cap Fac Grant

S



The CONTRACTOR shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to
verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the CONTRACTOR during the
term of the contract. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide acceptable evidence of thelr
enrollment at the time of the submission of the CONTRACTOR's bid. Acceptable evidence shall
include, but not be limited to, a copy of the fully executed E-Verify Memorandum of
Understanding for the business.

CONTRACTOR shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services
pursuant to this Contract to likewlse utilize the United States Department of Homeland
Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the
subcontractor during the term of this Contract.

CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain records of its participation and compliance with the
provisions of the E-Verify program, including participation by its subcontractors as provided
above, and to make such records available to the parties consistent with the terms of
CONTRACTOR's enrollment in the program. This includes maintaining a copy of proof of
CONTRACTOR's and any subcontractors' enrollment in the E-Verify Program.

Compliance with the terms of this section is made an express condition of this Contract and the
Parties may treat a failure to comply as a material breach of this Contract.

A contractor who registers with and participates in the E-Verify program may not be barred or
penalized under this sectlon If, as a result of receiving inaccurate verification infarmation from
the E-Verify program, the contractor hires or employs a person who is not eligible for
employment,

Nothing in this section may be construed to allow intentional discrimination of any class
protected by law.

Parties will not intentionally award a publicly-funded contract to any CONTRACTOR who
knowingly employs unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment
provisions contained in 8 United States Code (USC) section 1324a(e)(section 274A(e) of the
Immigration and Nationality Act (INA). The Parties shall consider a CONTRACTOR's intentional
employment of unauthorized aliens as grounds for immediate termination of this contract.

14. Notices. Any notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed delivered upon hand delivery, or three (3) days following deposit in the

United States postal system, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the
parties at the following addresses:

Page 9 of 12

MIRA Veteran's Memorial Center Cap Fac Grant



15.

16.

17.

GRANTEE: GRANTOR:
Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA)  Brevard County Space Coast Office of

Tourism
c/o Executive Director ¢/o Executive Director
2575 N Courtney Parkway 430 Brevard Avenue, Suite 150
Merritt Island, Florida 32953 Cocoa, Florida 32922
Phone: (321) 454-6610 Phone: (321) 433-4470

Remedies. The GRANTEE's remedy for default by GRANTOR shall be a claim for funds for
which the GRANTOR's obligation to pay has ripened by virtue of the GRANTEE’s compliance
with all conditions precedent established under the terms of this Agreement. Such claims do
not include consequential or special damages, and shall not exceed the total value of the
Grant. The GRANTOR's remedies for default by the GRANTEE shall include, but shall not be
limited to, a claim for repayment of the grant upon approval by the Brevard County Board of
County Commissioners, if any funds have been extended by the GRANTOR to the GRANTEE.
Such claim of funds shall be limited by any other agreements between the Parties.

LEGAL SERVICES ~ CONFLICT WAIVER: The Office of the Brevard County Attorney represents
the both Parties to this Agreement. Although the interest of the County and the Agency are
generally consistent, it is recognized and understood that differences may exist or become
evident during the course of this representation. Notwithstanding these possibilities, the
County and the Agency have determined that it is in their individual and mutual interest to
have the Office of the Brevard County Attorney represent them jointly In connection with
agreements relating to this Agreement, as well as other Agreements between the Parties.
Accordingly, the County and the Agency agree that the Office of the Brevard County Attorney
may represent them jointly in this Agreement, as well as other Agreements between the
Parties. The County and the Agency agree to waive any potential conflict of interest arising
out of, and will not object to, the Office of the Brevard County Attorney's representation of
each other in connection with this Agreement, as well as other Agreements between the
Parties. Itis further understood and agreed that the Office of the Brevard County Attorney
may freely convey necessary information provided by one client to the other, and that the
County Attorney’s Office will have no obligation to maintain confidentiality between the
County and the Agency as to matters that are the subject of Agreements between the Parties
unless the Agency decides to retain a separate, independent Counsel.

Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the last day the Parties execute this
Grant Agreement (the “Effective Date”) and the Parties shall commence the performance of
their obligations under this Agreement as of such date.

Page 10 of 12

MIRA Veteran's Mermoriul Center Cap Fac Grant

6O



18. Entirety, Construction of Agreement, and Counterparts. This Agreement represents the
understanding between the Parties in its entirety and no other agreements, either oral or
written, exist between the GRANTOR and the GRANTEE relating to this specific grant award.
The Parties acknowledge that they fully reviewed this agreement and had the opportunity
to consult with legal counsel of their choice, and that this agreement shall not be construed
against any party as if they were the drafter of this Agreement. This Agreement may be
executed in counterparts all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same
Agreement. GRANTEE warrants that it is possessed with all requisite lawful authority to
enter into this Agreement, and the individual executing this Agreement is possessed with
the authorlty to slgn and bind GRANTEE. All conditions and assurances required by this
Agreement are binding on Parties and their authorized successors in interest as authorized
by law.

19. Relationship Between Parties. Both Partles acknowledge that they are both governmental
entities formed under the laws of the State of Florida. The Parties further acknowledge that
the GRANTEE is a governmental agency which was created by the GRANTOR, specifically the
Brevard County Board of County Commissioner’s pursuant to Chapter 163 Florida Statutes.
Under this relationship It is the desire of both Parties to make a diligent effort to work with
the other to meet the desired outcomes of this project and to resolve any disputes or
potential amendments to this Agreement In an appropriate manner.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Grant Agreement on the last date
written below.

(Signature Poge Follows)

Page 11 of 12

MIRA Veteran’s Memorial Center Cap Fac Grant

61



[il'{"'{.afre (Z: LK}J LAA L) }{‘ s"2'/

Withes Date

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(MIRA)

g L 98 2,

\
Sigﬂa/ture and Date

Larry Lallo
Print/Type Name

Executive Director
Title

BREVARD COUNTY - SPACE COAST OFFICE
OF TOURISM

QJb\ P

Peter Cranis, Tourism Executive Director

As approved by the Board October 6, 2020

REVIEWED FOR LEGAL FORM AND
CONTENT:

Just[r'/Caron, Assistant County Attorney

Page 12 of 12

MIRA Veteran'y Memorial Center Cap Fac Gram

=



LAND

MERRITT IS.
= REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY &=

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM IV.E.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Community Redevelopment Survey

PROJECT: Survey Development

Requested Action: Update

Summary Explanation & Background:

The Merritt Island -wide Community Development Perspective survey will soon be finalized. It will be sent to
a random sample of persons and businesses on Merritt Island.

With the cooperation of the North Merritt Island Homeowners Association (NMIHOA), a mini survey was
graciously co-opted with their survey and format, and mailed out in the NMIHOA Newsletter. This was sent
to all homeowners on NMI. This survey data will be helpful as we prepare to explore the feasibility of creating

a Redevelopment Area on NMI.

Survey results are starting to come in, and tabulations will begin soon.

Fiscal Impact:

Exhibits Attached: see attached

63



: 5' | TAPE dosedhers
i TAPEclosed here : : TAPE closed here H

Place
First-Class
stamp here

North Merritt Island Homeowners Association
P. O. Box 542372
Merritt Island, FL 32954-2372

Thank you! We value your time and opinion. To mail, please fold here and tape in two places indicated above and place stamp.

2021 North Merritt Island Citizen Survey
From time to time the NMIHOA has conducted surveys to better understand the opinions of North Merritt Island residents. For this 2021 survey,
we have partnered with the Merritt Island Redeveopment Agency (MIRA) which is updating a community area plan. Data collected will help to
better serve the NMI area as well as all of Merritt Island.

Completed surveys may be returned in one of three ways: 1. Tape, stamp, and mail as indicated above; 2. Mail or deliver to: MIRA,
2575 N. Courtenay Parkway, Suite 214, Merritt Island, FL 32953;  or 3. E-mailed to: Cynthia.Thurman@brevardfl.gov.

1. How long have you lived on North Merritt Island?  Less than 5 years ___5-15 years__15-30 years___30+years___

2. Why do you choose to live or own property on North Merritt Island? Check all that apply:
Lifestyle_; Rural___; Golf Course___; Short Commute___; Family___; Grew Up Here___; Low Crime___: Jobs__:
Business Owner/Place of Business___; Pedestrian Friendly___; Schools___; Access to River___; Open Space__; Image__:
Access to Public Transportation___; Sense of Community___; Affordability___; Easy Lifestyle_; Overall Location___.

3. How concerned are you with the current and future condition of 4. What types of development do you believe should be
each of the following items in your community? ENCOURAGED or DISCOURAGED in the North Merritt
Please rate your concerns using the following scale: Island Area? (Barge Canal to KSC) Please answer all.
1= not concerned, 2= somewhat concerned, 3= concerned, 4= very concemed Encouraged | Discouraged
tem Now | Future Eln:(le Family Homes
a. | Traffic/Congestion/Safety 2 .S
e 3 - Agricultural

b. | Availability of Sidewalks & Bicycle Paths S

c. | Roads & Bridges/Maintenance Meﬁ:a o:a Straucrlzl il

d. | Ground Water Qualty C“ = ’;/I - t”rT‘

e. | Preservation of the Indian River Lagoon S u§ L

3 Commercial Services - For the Cruise

f. | Menitt Island Taxes used for other County areas Industry - such as Park and Rides

g | Commercial Building Vacancies Warehousing/Selt-Storage

h. | Sanitary Sewer Availability Agritourism - Large Scale

i Wildlife Conservation Other:

je Space Center Increase Activity-Impact on NMI Infrastructure

R [ rmr—— 5. How strongly would you support or oppose

: i AR L Sl L policies regarding the growth and development of

3 Emergency Operations Planning Specifics for North Meritt Island North Merritt Island? Check one box for each Policy:

m. Barg(.a Canal Development Control-Impact on NMI Infrastructure Policies That: Suppor Oppose

n. | ldentity of North Meitt Island as a Community Restrict Growth

oY Stormwater Drainage Policies that pace growth in targeted areas

p. | Hurmicane Evacuation Planning >

Unrestricted unmanaged growth

Thank you!



ME

== HEDEVELOPMENT AGENCY s

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM IV.F.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: SR 520 and Courtenay Parkway Landscape Remediation

PROJECT:

Update Review

Requested Action:
S.R. 520 and SR 3 Landscape Remediation Maintenance Update and Contract not to exceed amount

Summary Explanation & Background:

1.

N U AW

10.
11.

12.

13.

Precedent to and during 2018-2020, the MIRA Board has attempted to go out to bid, for
remediation work on at least three different occasions. Each time, the pricing response, has
necessitated either a price or scope of work adjustment on the Board’s part, or created a
more onerous threshold of competitive bidding, requirements based on cost, with various
thresholds triggering different bidding requirements and award processes, and time periods.
In addition, during this period it took several months to repair irrigation equipment damaged
by lightening, and work out issues with overspray caused by a contractor.

In 2020 there was a competitive bidding process with two companies responding.

Contract awarded to Gulf Stream Building Group of Fort Pierce.

Original Bid for work that was in the RFP specifications came in at approximately $120,000.
Board reduced the scope of work to reduce price to approximately $82,000.

Contract Executed on 11/22/2020

Costs, shortages of material and labor, and additional plant damage, and torpedo grass
issues are driving the costs back up.

MIRA Board approved a price adjustment specified reduction in planting to bring in line with
probable cost estimates.

Contract executed with Gulfstream Building Group.

Work was to be completed by February 26, 2021, and is being extended to accommodate the
issues.

Covid 19 impacted the project with Nursery shortages and “growing” delays for specified
plants.

There will be an additional work item, necessary to eradicate torpedo grass in the juniper
areas, and to replace additional damaged plants at contract unit pricing. This will provide us
the opportunity to have a better finished product.

Fiscal Impact:  $120,000

Exhibits Attached:




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
April 29, 2021

ITEM IV.F.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: SR 520 and Courtenay Parkway Landscape Remediation

PROJECT:

Update Review

Requested Action:
S5.R. 520 and SR 3 Landscape Remediation Maintenance Update and Contract not to exceed amount

Summary Explanation & Background:

1.

©NO L AW

10.
11.

12.

13.

Precedent to and during 2018-2020, the MIRA Board has attempted to go out to bid, for
remediation work on at least three different occasions. Each time, the pricing response, has
necessitated either a price or scope of work adjustment on the Board’s part, or created a
more onerous threshold of competitive bidding, requirements based on cost, with various
thresholds triggering different bidding requirements and award processes, and time periods.
In addition, during this period it took several months to repair irrigation equipment damaged
by lightening, and work out issues with overspray caused by a contractor.

In 2020 there was a competitive bidding process with two companies responding.

Contract awarded to Gulf Stream Building Group of Fort Pierce.

Original Bid for work that was in the RFP specifications came in at approximately $120,000.
Board reduced the scope of work to reduce price to approximately $82,000.

Contract Executed on 11/22/2020

Costs, shortages of material and labor, and additional plant damage, and torpedo grass
issues are driving the costs back up.

MIRA Board approved a price adjustment specified reduction in planting to bring in line with
probable cost estimates.

Contract executed with Gulfstream Building Group.

Work was to be completed by February 26, 2021, and is being extended to accommodate the
issues to June 30, and will start in May.

Covid 19 impacted the project with Nursery shortages and “growing” delays for specified
plants.

There will be an additional work item, necessary to eradicate torpedo grass in the juniper
areas, and to replace additional damaged plants at contract unit pricing. This will provide us
the opportunity to have a better finished product.

Fiscal Impact:  $120,000

Exhibits Attached: Contract Scope

06



DocuSign Envelope ID: FBSA49E9-7D50-4F4I_:_-!3_‘I.)‘4E-_7_5_4‘_18P_7EQE?]_ ..-DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PRO.JECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a’/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered the date last written below by and between the
MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a community redevelopment agency
established pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, hereinafter referred to as “MIRA,” and
GULFSTREAM Building Group Inc., a business incorporated under the laws of Florida with an
address of 2751 TALL PINE STREET, FORT PIERCE, 34945, hereinafter referred to as the
“Contractor.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, MIRA is tasked with addressing slum and blighted conditions occurring
within the Merritt Island Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, in order to ensurc the Merritt Island Redevelopment Area continues to
prosper and grow economically, MIRA has determined that it is in the public interest to conduct
certain landscaping activities to enhance the appearance and economic vitality of the
Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the expenditure of such funds is authorized under the MIRA
Redevelopment Plan and will help serve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of
Brevard County and the Redevelopment Area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, and other good and valuable
consideration, and the mutual covenants set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, MIRA and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The above recitals are part of this Contract as if fully set forth herein.

2. Scope of Services. The Contractor agrees to perform and complete the activities
provided for in Exhibit “A” the Scope of Services, and in Exhibit “B”, the Contract
Drawings attached hereto. Contractor shall complete the work outlined in the Scope
of Services and Contract Drawings in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this Contract and other items or attachments incorporated by reference herein.

3. Term. Upon issuance of a Notice to Proceed from MIRA the work outlined in
Exhibit “A” the Scope of Services, and in Exhibit “B”, the Contract Drawings
attached hereto shall commence no later than by January 18, 2021, hereinafter
referred to as the “Start Date”, and be completed, no later than by February 26,
2021.

4. Any request for an extension of time beyond the Completion Date must be made in
writing no less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Completion Date.

1|Page

L\



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E5S7 EDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

LA R T AV BRI SY o YR TS RN

LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT
LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

Timely requests to extend must be submitted to MIRA and may be approved by the
MIRA Executive Director, or his/her designee.

5. Payment. In exchange for the services performed by the Contractor, MIRA agrees to
compensate the Contractor at the rates identified in the Schedule of Contractor Unit
Prices attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. Such rates are exclusive of any Federal, State,
or local sales or use taxes, or any other taxes or fees assessed on, or in connection
with, any of the services or products provided herein. MIRA shall remit payment for
all undisputed invoices in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act, Section
218.70, Florida Statutes, et seq.

6. Termination. This Contract may be terminated by either Party for convenience upon
thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party. In the event MIRA terminates for
convenience, the Contractor shall be paid for work completed and costs incurred in
good faith up to and including the date the written notice was received. In the event
the Contractor terminates for convenience, MIRA shall receive a full refund of the
funds provided to Contractor within thirty (30) days of the written notice.

7. Indemnification. The Contractor agrces that it will indemnify and hold harmless the
officers, employees, and agents of both MIRA and the Brevard County Board of
County Commissioners, against any and all claims, losses, and expenses, including
attorney’s fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance, failure in the
performance of, or defect in the products or services outlined in this Contract.
Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless MIRA and the County when such
claim, damage, loss, or expense is: (1) attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease,
death, or personal injury, or to property damage, including loss of use resulting
therefrom, and (2) caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the
Contractor, any subcontractor, or any of their employees, or arises from a job-related
injury. The Parties acknowledge specific consideration has been exchanged for this
provision,

MIRA and the County’s liability obligations hereunder shall be subject to the right of
sovereign immunity and limited to the extent of the protections of and limitations on
damages as set forth in Section768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing in this Contract is
intended to inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any
claim which would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or
by operation of law. Nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of MIRA’s or the
County’s sovereign immunity.

2|Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57 = DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT —S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

8. Public Records Law. MIRA is subject to the public records provisions identified
throughout Florida law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.
With respect to this Contract, and any documents associated herewith, Contractor,
too, is subject to these provisions and shall keep and maintain public records related
to the performance of the services/products provided to or at the direction of MIRA.
Upon request from MIRA, Contractor shall provide, within a reasonable time, all
non-exempt and/or non-confidential records requests, or allow for the records to be
inspected or copied at a cost that does not exceed the costs provided in Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law. For information that Contractor
claims is exempt and/or confidential, Contractor shall provide a specific statutory cite
justifying the redaction and/or removal of such qualifying information.

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS BY EMAIL AT
PUBLICRECORDSREQUEST@BREVARDFL.GOV; BY
TELEPHONE AT (321) 633-2090; OR BY MAIL AT 2725 JUDGE
FRAN JAMIESON WAY, BLDG. C, STE 308, VIERA, FL 32940 —
ATTN: CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS. THIS PROVISION
SHALL SUPERSEDE ANY CONFLICTING AND/OR
CONTRADICTORY PROVISIONS CONTAINED HEREIN.

9. Insurance. Contractor, at its own expense, shall keep in force and at all times
maintain during the term of this Contract: (a) general liability insurance issued by
responsible insurance companies and in a form acceptable to MIRA, with combined
single limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and
property damage per occurrence; (b) full and complete workers’ compensation
coverage as required by Florida law; and (c) auto liability insurance which includes
coverage for all owned, non-owned, and rented vehicles with a combined single limit
for each occurrence of one million dollars ($1,000,000).

The Contractor shall provide MIRA with Certificate(s) of Insurance on all policies of
mnsurance and renewals thereof in an industry standard Acord form. Said general
liability policy(ies) shall provide that MIRA and the County be included as additional
insureds. MIRA shall be notified in writing of any reduction, cancellation, or
substantial change of policy(ies) at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of
said action if replacement insurance meeting the requirements and specifications

3|Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: FBEA49EQ-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57  :DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT - S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

therein cannot be obtained. All insurance policies shall be issued by responsible
companies who are licenses and authorized under the laws of the State of Florida.

Warranty. The Contractor warrants that all services performed pursuant to this
Contract will be performed in accordance with the general landscaping standards and
practices in existence at the time the services and/or products are being performed.

Independent contractor. The Parties to this Contract, their employees and agents,
are independent contractors and not employees or agents of each other. Nothing in
this Contract shall be interpreted to establish any relationship other than that of
independent contractors during and after the term of this Contract. Contractor is
solely responsible for compliance with all labor, healthcare, and tax laws pertaining to
the Contractor, its officers, agents, and employees.

Governing Law, Venue, Attorney’s Fees, Waiver of Right to Jury Trial.

This Contract shall be construed according to the laws of Florida and shall not be
construed more strictly against one Party than against the other because it may have
been drafted by one of the Parties. As used herein, “shall” is always mandatory. In the
event of any legal proceedings atising from or related to this Contract: (1) venue for
any state or federal legal proceedings shall be in a court of competent jurisdiction in
and for Brevard County; (2) each Party shall bear its own attorney’s fees; and (3) for
civil proceedings, the Parties hereby consent to trial by the court and waive the right
to jury trial.

Permits. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local
laws and regulations in implementing this Contract and shall include this requirement
in all subcontracts pertaining to work completed as part of this Contract. The
Contractor shall obtain any and all governmental permits necessary to carryout this
Contract. Any activity not properly permitted prior to implementation or completed
without proper permits does not comply with this Contract and may not be eligible for
payment.

Public Entity Crime. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted
vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid,
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;
may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids,
proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded
or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a
contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity

4|{Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A4SES-7D50-4F 47 -BDAF-7544807E0E57 | EDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — 8.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for
CATEGORY TWO ($35,000) for a period of 36 months following the date of being
placed on the convicted vendor list.

15. Employment Eligibility Verification (E-Verify). The Contractor:

a. shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to
verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor
during the term of the Contract; and

b. shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing
services pursuant to this contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all
new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract term; and

c. agrees to maintain records of its participation and compliance with the
provisions of the E-Verify program, including participation by its subcontractors
as provided above, and to make such records available to MIRA consistent with
the terms of the Contractor’s enrollment in the program. This includes
maintaining a copy of proof of the Contractor’s and subcontractors’ enrollment in
the E-Verify Program.

d. Compliance with the terms of this section is made an express condition of this
Contract and MIRA may treat a failure to comply as a material breach.

16. Scrutinized Companies.
a. The Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes,
MIRA may immediately terminate this Contract at its sole option if the Contractor
or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the
Contractor or its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that
Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of the
Contract.

b. If this Contract is for more than one million dollars, the Contractor certifies that
it and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities
in Sudan, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy
Sector List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in
Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes,
MIRA may immediately terminate this Contract at its sole option if the
Contractor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false
certification; or if the Contractor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are placed on
the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott the Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran
Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or
Syria during the term of the Contract.

5|Page



DocusSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57 ZDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

WILEININD T § D LMY NG

LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

¢. The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Contract.

d. As provided in Section 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to
authorize these contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

17. Entire Agreement. This Contract represents the entire understanding between the
Parties and may only be modified in writing and duly executed by both Parties.

18. Notices. All notices required under or regarding this Contract will be in writing and
will be considered if delivered personally, mailed via registered or certified mail
(return receipt requested and postage prepaid), given by facsimile (confirmed by
certification of receipt), cmailed, or sent by courier (confirmed by receipt) addressed
to the following designated parties:

If to Contractor: If to MIRA:

Gulfstream Building Group Larry Lallo

Scott Holmes, President Executive Director, MIRA

2751 Tall Pine Street 2575 N. Courtenay Pkwy No. 207

Fort Pierce, FL. 34945 Merritt Island, Florida 32953

Phone: 772-332-8140 321-454-6610

19. Amendments. This Contract may be amended only by a written instrument executed
by both Parties.

20. Force Majeure. Neither Party will be responsible for failure to carry out any terms of

21.

this Contract due to any one of the following circumstances beyond the control of
each Party: (a) the operation and effcct of rules, regulations, or orders promulgated by
any commission, county, or governmental agency of the State of Florida or the United
States; (b) a restraining order, injunction, or similar decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction; (c) war; (d) flood; (e) earthquake; (f) fire; (g) severe wind storm or
hurricane; (h) acts of public disturbance; (i) quarantine restrictions; (j) epidemic; (k)
strikes; or (1) sabotage. The Contractor shall not be subject to any liability for failure
to carry out any of the terms of this Contract to the extent that such failure shall be
due to a Force Majeure event as defined herein. In such event, the Parties shall be
excused from the obligation to return funds provided herein if they can agree, in
writing, to a revised completion date for the work outlined herein based on the
circumstances.

Waiver. The rights and remedies provided to each of the Parties herein shall be
cumulative and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or
otherwise. Any failure in the exercise by either Party of its right to terminate this
Contract or to enforce any provision of this Contract for default or violation by the

6|Pagec

[\Q/



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7 DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

LLIE IR ATR BRI Y oA | 5N Y

LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT
LANDSCAPING PROJECT - S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

other Party shall not prejudice such Party’s right of termination or enforcement for
any further action or other’s default or violation, or be deemed a waiver or forfeiture
of those rights.

22. Severability. If any portion of this Contract is deemed invalid or unenforceable, or if
applicable law mandates a different interpretation or result, the remaining provisions
will remain in effect and the Parties will negotiate in good faith to substitute for such
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision a mutually acceptable provision consistent
with the original intention of the Parties.

23. Captions. The section headings in this Contract are intended solely for convenience
of reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or interpretation of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized agents for each Party hereto have affixed
their hands and seals to this Contract the day and year last written below.

Gulfstream Building Group Larry Lallo
Scott Holmes. President Executive Director, MIRA
2751 Tall Pine Street 2575 N. Courtenay Pkwy No. 207
Fort Pierce, L. 34945 Merritt Island, Florida 32953
Phone: 772-332-8140 321-454-6610
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
By:l Satt rolmes By: | (e lallo
Scott Holmes, President Larry Lallo, Executive Director
11/22/2020
Date: ) Date: 11/22/2020

7/Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT - 8.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

EXHIBIT “A”

SCOPE OF SERVICES

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS

1.00 GENERAL

1.01  The Contractor is reminded that the General Conditions and / or Special
Conditions of this contract govern the work of this section of the
Specifications whether attached hereto or not. Subcontractors
undertaking to perform work under this Section shall be made fully
aware of these documents and of their responsibilities and obligations
thereunder. In the event of any discrepancies between the drawings
and specifications and the following 'Scope of Work', the latter shall
prevail.

2.00 SCOPE OF WORK

2.01 The work of this Section shall include all labor, materials, equipment,
appliances, and accessories necessary for the complete performance of
all excavation, grading, planting and backfill work in accordance with
these Specifications and the Contract Drawing(s), as attached in Exhibit
“B”. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the items listed
below and similar items shown on the Contract Drawings shall constitute
the work of this Section:

Finish grading and final site preparation of all areas to be landscaped.

Furnishing and incorporating fertilizer and other soil amendments.

Furnishing plant materials and grass materials and installing same.

Furnishing and placing 'Planting Mixture' and other miscellaneous items to

complete the work.

Replacement of unsatisfactory plant material.

Clean-up.

mm oOOow»

3.00 SITE PREPARATION

3.01 The Contractor shall provide finish grading and final preparation of all
areas to be landscaped to within 2" of finish grade. This will require
raking and pulverizing of all areas in order to crumble dirt, clogs and / or
debris. The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for finish grading,
which is the top 2" of the site.

4.00 MATERIALS
4.01 Plant materials shall be furnished by the Landscape Contractor and as
indicated on the plans in attachment Exhibit “B”. Ali plant materials shall
meet or exceed the following standards.
A.Plant species and sizes shall conform with plant list. Nomenclature



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

4.02

shall conform to Standardized plant names, in accordance with the
latest edition of the Florida Department of Agriculture's Grades and
Standards for Nursery Plants.

B.All plants shall be nursery grown or as stipulated herein and shall
comply with all required inspections, grading standards and plant
regulations as set forth in the Florida Department of Agriculture
‘Grades and Standards for Nursery Plants’, including revisions. Ensure
that plant materials are shipped with tags stating the botanical and
common name of the plant.

C.The minimum grade for all trees, palms, shrubs, and groundcovers shall
be Florida No. 1 and shall meet or exceed the size and quality standards
of the American Association of Nursery Stock, sponsored by the American
Association of Nurserymen, latest addition, unless otherwise indicated and
all plants shall be sound, healthy and vigorous, well-branched and densely
foliated when in leaf. They shall have healthy, well developed root
systems and shall be free of disease and insect pests, eggs or larvae.
Florida Fancy material shall be provided where plant list specifies
'specimen’.

D.The determining measurements for trees shall be the height and spread,
and shall be measured from the top of the plant to the root crown, not to
include the immediate terminal growth. Their width shall be measured
across the normal spread of the branches. Both measurements shall be
made with the plants in their normal position.

E.Plants larger in size than those specified may be used with approval of the
Landscape Architect at no additional cost to the Owner. If the use of the
larger plants is approved, the ball of earth or spread of roots shall be
increased proportionately.

F.Container grown plants the same quality as balled and burlapped plants
may be substitute in lieu thereof. Plants grown in containers shall be
delivered and remain in the containers in a shady location until planted.
Plants in containers shall be watered prior to transportation and shall be
kept moist until planted. The container must be removed prior to
planting, with care as not to injure the roots.

H. Substitutions in plant species or size will be made only with prior
written permission of the Landscape Architect.

I. If, in the opinion of the Landscape Architect, materials and/or work do not
conform with the plans and specifications, it may be rejected and upon
rejection, must be removed immediately from the site by the Contractor and
replaced.

J. The Contractor shall be responsible for the certification and inspection of
plant material that may be required by local, state, or federal authorities
and shall bear the cost of the same, if any.

Materials used to install the job shall meet or exceed the following standards:

A. Planting mix to be used for planting shall be: 1/3 coarse sand, 1/3
Florida peat,1/3 well-rotted pine chips or compost. 70% sand / 30%
muck shall be used in planters or areas with poor drainage.



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EOES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

5.00
5.01

B. Fertilizers: Fertilizer shall be delivered mixed as specified in standard

bags, sealed, and showing weight by analysis and name of manufacturer.
Fertilizer shall be stored in weatherproof storage and in such a manner
that its effectiveness will not be impaired.

. Mulch: Mulch shall be 'Coco Brown' mulch from Florida Mulch or approved equal.
. Water: All water required for the execution of the work shall be

supplied at the site by the Owner.

INSTALLATION
The Planting operations used to install the job shall meet or exceed the following
standards:

. Excavation of Plant Pits: Plant pit excavations shall be roughly cylindrical

in shape, with their side approximately vertical. Pit shall be excavated so
that bottom of pit is same depth as root ball. All planting holes to be hand
dug except where machine dug holes will not adversely affect or damage
utilities or improvements. Plants shall be centered in the hole, with the
trunk location as shown in the plans. Holes for balled and burlapped
plants shall be large enough to allow 12" minimum (depending on root
ball size) of back fill around the sides of the root ball, and 12" of back fill
beneath the root ball. In all cases the diameter of the plant hole shall be
twice the diameter of the root ball. Where excess material has been
excavated from the plant hole, the excavated material may be used to
backfill to the proper level. Mix existing excavated material in 50% / 50%
ratio with new planting soil mix. The Contractor, in excavation for
plantings shall take care not to damage underground utilities or other sub-
surface obstructions, and shall be held liable for their repair, if damaged.

. Setting Plants: Ali trees shall be set so, that when settled, the top of the

root ball will be flush with the surrounding area of the finish grade or
slightly above finish grade. Each plant shall be planted in planting soil mix
in the center of the pit. Shrubs shall be set flush with the surrounding finish
grade of the planting area. The back fill shall be made with prepared
planting in mixture as specified herein and shall be firmly rodded and
watered, so that no air-pockets remain. The quantity of water applied
immediately upon planting shall be sufficient to thoroughly moisten all of
the backfilled earth. Plants shall be kept in a moistened condition the
duration of the planting. All plants to be planted at 1"-2" above finish grade
and set plumb to the horizon.

. Staking and Guying: All trees shall be staked or guyed as shown in the

details and according to the following specifications.

1. Use wide plastic, rubber or other flexible strapping materials to
support the tree to stakes or ground anchors that will give as the tree
moves in any direction up to 30 degrees. Use strapping material
'Arbor Tie' by Deep Root (800) 458-7668 dark green color, or
approved equal. Do not use rope or wire through a hose. Use guy
chords, hose or any other thin bracing or anchorage material which
has a minimum 12" [300 mm] length of high visibility flagging tape
secured to guys, midway between the tree and stakes for safety.



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT —S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

2. Stake trees larger than 1" [25 mm)] diameter and smalter than 2" [50
mm] diameter with a 2" by 2" [50 by 50 mm] stake, set at least 2' [0/6
m] in ground and extending to the crown of the plant. Firmly fasten the
plant to the stake with flexible strapping materials as noted above.

3. TREES OF 2 TO 3 %" [50 MM TO 90 MM] CALIPER: Stake all trees,
other than palm trees, larger than 2" [S0 mm)] caliper and smaller than
3 2" [90 mm] caliper with two 2" by 4" [50 by 100 mm] stakes, 8' [2.4
m] long, set 2' [0.6 m] in the ground. Place the tree midway between the
stakes and hold it firmly in place by flexible strapping materials as noted
above.

4. LARGE TREES: Guy all trees, other than palm trees, larger than 3 4"
[90 mm] caliper, from at least three points, with flexible strapping
materials as noted above. Anchor flexible strapping to 2" by 4" by 24"
[50 by 100 by 600 mm] stakes, driven into the ground such that the
top of the stake is at least 3" [75 mm)] below the finished ground.

5. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR PALM TREES: Brace palms which
are to be staked with three 2" by 4" [50 by 100 mm] wood braces, toe-
nailed to cleats which are securely banded at two points to the palm,
at a point one third the height of the trunk. Pad the trunk with five layers
of bubble wrap under the cleats. Place braces approximately 120
degrees apart and secure them underground by 2" by 4" by 12" [50 by
100 by 300 mm] stake pads. Paint wood flat dark green exterior paint,
two coats.

6. TREE PROTECTION AND ROOT BARRIERS: Install tree barriers
when called for in the Contract Documents or by the Landscape
Architect to protect existing trees from damage during project
construction. Place barricades at the drip line of the tree foliage or as
far from the base of the tree trunk as possible. Barricades shall be able
to withstand bumps by heavy equipment and trucks. Maintain
barricades in good condition. When calted for in the Contract
Documents, install root barriers or fabrics in accordance with the
details shown.

D. Pruning: All broken or damaged roots or branches shall be cut smoothly and
the tops of all trees shall be pruned in a manner complying with standard
horticultural practice. At the time pruning is completed, all remaining wood
shall be alive.

E. Mulching: The County will provide and install all mulch if planting is
completed by March 1st, 2020. The mulch shall be maintained
continuously in place until the time of final inspection, and must be a
minimum of 3 inches thick. Mulch shall not be placed against stems or
trunks.

F. Fertilizing: Feeding of all trees and specimen shrubs shall be done with a
slow release granular 12-6-8 with complete Minors Turf and Ornamental
fertilizer, as per manufacturer's instructions. Contractor shall submit and
label to the Landscape Architect for approval prior to application.

G. Pre-emergent Herbicide: Contractor shall apply Trifluralin based
pre-emergent herbicide to proposed landscape areas at



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

6.00
6.01

6.02
6.03

6.04

7.00
7.01

7.02

8.00
8.01

9.00
9.01

manufacturer's recommended rates prior to planting.

ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD

Keep all plants watered, fertilized, mulched, pruned, staked and guyed
as necessary to assure specified minimum grade of Florida No. 1
through the duration of the project construction and establishment
period.

During the establishment period, keep the individual planting locations
and planting beds free of litter and undesirable vegetation.

Ensure that the plants are maintained so that they are healthy,
vigorous, and undamaged throughout the duration of the project
construction and establishment period.

During the establishment period, replace any plants that fall below
specified minimum grade. Use replacement plants of the same
species, size and planting medium as the plant being replaced and as
specified in the contract documents.

GUARANTEE

The Landscape Contractor shall guarantee and maintain all trees, palms,
shrubs & groundcovers for a period of one year. The Landscape
Contractor shall replace at the direction of the Landscape Architect all
trees, shrubs, or groundcovers deemed by the Landscape Architect to be
unacceptable, due to death or damage; acts of God, Owner negligence
and vandalism excepted. The guarantee period shall begin upon
substantial completion of the job, as determined by the landscape
architect.

New material used to replace material unacceptable to the

Landscape Architect, shall be guaranteed for similar period from

date of installation.

FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

The Landscape Contractor shall advise the Landscape Architect in writing
at the end of the guarantee period that the project is ready for final
inspection. Only upon notification to the Landscape Architect by the
Landscape Contractor in writing and subsequent inspection attended by
the Landscape Contractor shall the requirements of the guarantee be met.

CLEAN-UP

Upon completion of all work under this section, the Landscape
Contractor shall clear the site of all debris, superfluous material and all
equipment to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect

10.0 PAYMENT

10.01

Invoicing and Payment. For the services provided under this Contract, MIRA will

pay CONTRACTOR rates based upon the Schedule of Contractor Unit Prices attached
hereto as Exhibit “C”. Unless the Exhibits specifically provides for reimbursement of
expenses, the rates described herein will be CONTRACTOR's sole compensation for the



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — 8.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

services to be provided. If the Exhibits specifically provide for reimbursement of expenses,
such expenses must be commercially reasonable. Except for any reimbursable expenses

specifically authorized by Exhibit, CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for all of costs
CONTRACTOR incurs in meeting its obligations herein.

10.02 In accordance with Part VI, Chapter 218, Florida Statutes (Local Government
Prompt Payment Act), invoices shall be paid by the MIRA to the CONTRACTOR within
thirty (30) calendar days of the MIRA’s receipt of a proper invoice(s) (“Payment Period”),
unless, the MIRA: 1) within 10 days after the improper payment request or invoice is
received, notifies the CONTRACTOR, in writing, that the payment request or invoice is
improper and indicates what corrective action on the part of the CONTRACTOR is needed
to make the payment request or invoice proper.

10.03 CONTRACTOR fully acknowledges and agrees that if at any time it performs
Services on the Project contemplated by the parties, such Services which have not been,
a) fully negotiated, reduced to writing, and formally executed by both the MIRA and
CONTRACTOR,; or b) reduced to writing by the MIRA and signed by the MIRA, then the
CONTRACTOR shall perform such Services without liability to the MIRA, and at the
CONTRACTOR's own risk.

10.04 No Liens. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that the MIRA is a Florida
Community Redevelopment Agency and, as such, the MIRA’s public property and the
Project(s) involved are not subject to construction liens pursuant to Chapter 713, Florida
Statutes or any other lien statute. CONTRACTOR shall not file or record claims of lien or
any other liens against any Project or property owned by the MIRA.

10.05 Records. CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain, and to cause each of
CONTRACTOR’s subcontractors to maintain complete and accurate books and records
(“Books™) in accordance with sound accounting principles and standards, and relating to
all Services and the Project, and the related costs and expenditures to the MIRA that have
been contracted for and paid. These Books shall be maintained for five (5) years following
Final Payment; five (5) years following termination of any Services: or any other time
beyond five (5) years as may be required by Florida’s applicable Public Records retention
schedules, whichever is the longer of these times. All Books shall be subject to audit by
the MIRA at all times during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year
after the termination of this Agreement.

10.06 Final Payment. The acceptance by the CONTRACTOR, its successors, or
assignees, of Final Payment for Services shall constitute a full and complete release of the
MIRA from any and all claims or demands regarding further compensation for authorized
Services rendered prior to such Final Payment that the CONTRACTOR, its successors, or
assignees have or may have against the MIRA under the provisions of this Agreement,
unless otherwise previously and properly filed pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement,
or in a court of competent jurisdiction. This subsection does not affect any other portion of
this Agreement that extends obligations of the parties beyond Final Payment.

10.07 Local Government Prompt Payment Act (Disputed Invoices). In order to be



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQE57

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

considered to be valid, an invoice must include all information that the City needs to verify
the accuracy of the invoice and the amount of payment due based on the specific
requirements of this Contract, such as where partial payments are due upon completion of
specific tasks, or where payments are based on hourly rates. In addition, where payment
of reimbursable expenses is specifically provided for, an invoice for such expenses will not
be valid unless sufficient documentation is provided to verify that such expenses were
incurred and that other conditions have been met. In the event that the MIRA receives an
improper payment request or invoice, the MIRA shall notify the CONTRACTOR, in writing,
that the payment request or invoice is improper and indicate what corrective action on the
part of the vendor is needed to make the payment request or invoice proper. If a dispute
arises between the MIRA and the CONTRACTOR concerning payment of a payment
request or proper invoice, the dispute shall be finally determined by the local governmental
entity pursuant to administrative dispute resolution procedures, which shall be commenced
within 45 days after the MIRA received the disputed payment request or proper invoice
and concluded by final decision of the MIRA within 60 days after the MIRA received such.
Such dispute resolution procedures shall be those procedures as may be currently
established by resolution or ordinance of the MIRA, or, if no such procedures have been
established, the dispute shall be reviewed by the MIRA Manager or his/her designee, who
shall endeavor to meet with the CONTRACTOR to discuss the nature of the dispute and
attempt to reach a resolution of the dispute within the time allotted by law. If no resolution
amenable to the parties can be reached, the MIRA Manager or his/her designee shall issue
a final decision in writing to the CONTRACTOR within 60 days as required by statute.

10.01End

]9



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EOE57

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT - S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

EXHIBIT “B”
CONTRACT DRAWINGS

Q\



DocuSign Envelope 1D: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

52260 (1ZE) X¥d
06/0-67 {LZE) INDHd
28526 T4 ANVIS! LIINYIW
0¥ 374 ADMDOED §7bF

ATNIDY CWICT LOCT - WO NOILYZIMDH1OY NI A NG A 03250k
OL THI O Bl AT WO § QFITNA LON TS B0 VRO RN DS * WO P O W T MG 1

ANTDV 17307 L2040 TH A3 O3WINT LG

SV TILOHLSTY ATIANT £Q GNSC I 4§ TYUS 13970 JHL NIFLM SON SSOKZ 13IH.S &0 Or

e )
%02 SOILEOCKADTOY 3.90TDY . STIIV <O SIASA DN 1Y
BATNELM S ITNIUS R UNY SSINIE T 26 S30F T 117 Qo

R T EE VA

INAS3re LON STECSIANZENS S G N2 25007 TIVHS >0 TIY SNIMDM (O 514G, S¥ INGD
3HLNZ-Ar STSNEDeANT 202
1T iS3T0NA I C 318V

¥ 287IE HOSINNZaNS TONINGS DIz ARYEOIWS: ASHI_HZD ¥ 20

AN LG TINDISIOTY O | : 07 e
L ¥ “rS NO4 P NGS -1 AQS SENTS OZENS N2 S95my S SLMEEw

CONLe VHCH
HIVE 4G QN3 3L L% DLLIVEL ATM-OM L NERIZE DN NOLVAVIXS BIACD TIVHS 221 ¥ INOT D03
T PO SEITROD ATVEIAS A ST I TN M TV Y NCELTTRS PR 0 DG BLTTHIE

S ECAA ¥D4 B30 T LY O1a)vial 20 30w IND A0 RARINIR Y NIV (N A " TY—S O L0VHINDT ?

L3208 3L 50
4 NDLYDAT CNISIKE W NYNIE A QINLNISA 36 STYRS 3DYADIS SMILSIXA Mw 4t

2494 20 TN GNT I NIV A ATWEAYO:
3 D4 1SCI T AZRIDY
TELNTS Slzave,

COYANOD RIdvR L AYERARTL THL N TICO TN 28 The-5 5k

1 A€ QAT ST A 1G71=0 &

A S i S U gl ANCLY

RIS s DMWOG B L RSl TV M LTI G e YR R SN ) GAAL o ANIAGA Y RS D00 b S
YIS €735 2 RO IV SHNO- Wi TalO9 WS- WOP OB A BTE00 TS SOMTTO TR WYY 8.

YABY LY\ VPITTELSNGS 24. 801 2185 7AY 207 19IIL0A KEDM OV ¥ODVI I BANG INCZ
SO J1¥IH0 QL WOIIVHINOS Sl A CTRILTY F6 L ON TV TavA TIAVIC CNY Saavei L %

T4, 14T A 5 S¥ S3TASC SN2 YL RHOATIN

19 \DILY_rCASRYAL IG LI LRV ST
£ 3TNWOROODY M 3T V-8 SICHINGS MazvH, T

‘SI1ON (01431 40 IONVNIINIVIN
ATH3IWHOL) TONLINOD JId4Ve L AMVHOdWIL

e I T

Eh S0 THL TNIINLA BN, VA T RO 2ATTC e 0EY

NOUZEISIS T LY AV VEA SITR2LYN T 504 NMOONINE
D LNN ¥ WYl JM_ OLIFINR TTERS MOISYE NS 5L L

oo
SNEND WELSAS MO v 3t 02 STV VD 1y

SO0 CRAod® T NDH ¢ CMD 1A MO TS O O

YO N ENIRACO Se002D
s - c

DT o) Jm2 ANIA CTIS YA ML TVIINOS Bl

SNCIAIAIG TV
VYN A0 JLYNIXOME oY 3EY CACIADH:
32 DN CNNOHE"S

€3 3B -4 2815 0L CRANOIN M TR BOITVILIOD 3 ¥

SLIAK 28 NOILSMR. SNGD

20 ZTVINGLNIFA AW INNT 2 “OR LNOZ D3YHL AXYNCAAIL

31045 YAy 1T
LNINIYZES § (VNS 2Ny uEg
VY SEOCD 22915 77—t ATIRCS 198 20 LO¥R VD a1

“EFIT MINOD WOL MR § IVANDS
39 "AINFDY LNIRICTIAIEIN ANVTII LLIWNIN THL HUM
»T MoeEE Y 3

NOUIMLINDT o0 i WvLT
WU O WO TRACE Y LTVEY IV SLOCSIE00R Jeinit IV

'S3LON IVH3INID

_: i L 1

218545k [1ZE) ‘YIAWNN INOHY
OT1¥] A¥NY™ :HOLO3HI0
ADNIDV LINIWJD™IA3AIY
ONYIS) LLINSIW

TOVINOD INZ1D

St e
D L]

G N0 4T

A T SV
ST AP

SNV13q IdYISANYT R LS INVId 211

08+BZL NYHL 00+6L 1 NOILYLS - Nv1d 3dVWOSANYT LI

00+€1 L NYHL 00+60) NOILYLS - Nv1d AdvOSANY1 DI
00+60L NMHL D0+66 NOILYLS - NY1d IdvISANVT 671
00+66 NYHL D0+68 NOILYLS - NV1d 3dVOSANYT 81
00+68 NHHL 00+6L NOILVLS - NVd 3dVISONYT 271
00+62 NYHL 00+62 NOILVLS - NYd 3dVISONYT 91
00+69 NUHL 00+6§ NOILVLS - NvTd 3dVOSAONY1 671
00+6S NYHL 00+6¥ NOILYLS - NV1d 3dVISONYT -]
00+6% NAUHL 00+6€ NOILVLS - NY1d IdVISANYT £
00+6E NUHL 00+0€ NOILYLS - NY1d 3dVOSANYT 27

133HS ¥3A00  L-MAD

X3AaNI 133HS

vaI¥014 'ALNNOD QHVAINE
AVMISNVO ANVTISI LLIYY3IW 1SvY3 /025 avod J1VLIS

AAOM TVIAAWHY
Aoua3Y Juourdojorapay] puejsy LD

QL



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQES7

zL z1 ooe=.t | 14 ‘Alunoy pieaalg
.s_,.:.,é NV1d JHOAA IBIpalURy - >m>>®w:mo puejsi HISN 1se] 02SHS

3dvosanyl  Aouaby Juswdojanapay pue|s| BJUISIN

0ZELV0 |

F——

ANNMHOM J0 WM L__J

A¥YSSIOIN SV AVMISNYD 026 THL NO S3IUL
COGMNDLLNE BIANS 1T IOVHE ¥ NALHOIVILS €
O DL QL
HO{Nc 5 VDM TYSOISIQ ONY STYAONTY INVId
FLYYRLE3 OL 24D e PEA TTVHO WQULIVELKOD
0-0C - TI¥OS \2/ 3H_ 3USJI0 ISOISIA TYINIZYI LNV
fom—— = ONIAG / C¥2Q ONILSIXE 40 ISCSHI ONY IAOWIY
CISOHONd I TVINILYI INYId MIN 3K T

o m ms 0 00+6€ N¥HL 004+0E NOILVYLS < 3SMHINLO 03121334S SSTINA

SENYHS ¥ SIIUL ONLLEXT TT¥ 33534
¥3LNID NI NYOHLMYH NVION! (061) M TS N1 NAMOHS TVINZLWW FAvISONYT SNILSIXE &
30V1d3Y NVIOIW FHILNT 40 SSOT %004 e

<07 ONDNYE SAT
SANNZC

Q
o
c
a
53
m
el
e e M
Lass 5o DML VIT ]
TR VYOI MO W

CNNOGLSIM 025 ¥5 —=

¥3INID S3l8E30

SV YNVOrIL ALy I | iy gt P x\ aLny ATONVIML J

AT XV AT XV
v.SIA 1002 {0£2) VISIA 1009 (518}

AT Xv4
YLSIA 1003 (SE1)

HILNID NI NYOHLMYH NVIONI (S51) i
30V1d3Y INVIQIW THIINS 30 SSOT %00L




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQ0E57

Ly r e

zt | e ooE=d | 714 ‘Auno) pieasiq

il NYId YIOM [eIpSWaY - Aemasne) puels| JIs I1seT 0Z5HS
— 3dvosanvt  Aouaby Juswdojonspay puels| HUJBN

o

" L.J = &2 00+6Y NYHL 00+6€ NOILVLS

| ¥
o}
o x| ! H 8
ERAI 7 :
2rs e 2 CEITVER T N3QHVO 3AITD E
Z0z | o
o
@R | {a39N34 ' 4 2
1} ' 107 ALana ' ‘&I -
/ _ll -— < A, | S T =7 ¥ %
1 —= - ONNDALSVE 0Z8 ¥S
e
= ;
. GNNOBLSIM 025 ¥5 —=
ity

|
I

NOLE
“ 10k P N g QN3 SIHL AT X4 YLSIA 1002 (stE) INinds “
| IOV1d3Y 'NVIQ3IW 3HILNT 40 SS01 %004 _
_ _

——

INITHNOM S0 LI §__}

ANYSTITIN SV AWWISTIVI ITT T4 O 23341
QOOMNOLLITE HIATIS TV 30VHE 7 NILHOIWILS  §
Qg ONILLIWANS QL
HOMG NHOM TYSOdSIQ ONY STYAOREN LNV
ALVALLSS OL 311S 3RL LISIA TIVHS BOLIVIINGD
Il A0 TIOGTD IIEEIVA LMY
DNIAC / O30 ONILEIVT 40 3504810 NY INOWIY
03ISOION S TINILYIN LNV MIN IHIHAR T
ISIMNIHLO O3IIPD3S SSITNA
SBN¥HS ? SIIYL ONILSKI TV SAVISTVE
AFUS NI NAASHS “vIHILVIN JgVOSONYI SNILSIXS |
nOoN|

M




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQES7

zL |+ woe=at | 14 '‘Aunon pieaalg
wi_| NV1d NIOAA |BIpBaWBY - Aemasne) pue|s| BUISN I1se] 02GHS

[ advosanv1  Aouaby Juswdojanspay pue|s| BB

ozELY

133HS SIHL M¥OM ON

IHPALTALO CIIDIIS SSIINA SENUKS
VAV DMLENE TV BANTEI e 'A3WT)
NI NMOKS "WINZLYA 3JVOSTNY) ONILSINS
310N

2o /N
e —
== E A 00466 NYHL 00+6¥ NOLLYLIS N\

NOILYLS S¥D H \- .f
E avInavo .‘__. Q2ONNS c 1
NYAQHE AN \ \\ll. = I "
— == P \L—— SR— “
%) ’ . i N
| I = / / e PR e I = “
— 3 i L
ey LK S \g / _\ ) i
_ I
= 1E
m —— RO ST O » ~I.
: = g
= : = = == e E — —
"I ——, S . ~ L= —_.N:
(SR Ity
ANNOALSIM OZS ¥S —w=— —v
2
Fh M) -
2 B
1 | L
et

1S ¥SOWNTd

vrad
SNHOM ronon NIDH
vavd EL




DocusSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0QES7

2t | g1 oe=a | 14 'Aunon pieaaig
NV1d YIOAA |elpaulsy - >m>>0m3mo puejs| Ji1IaN 1se3 0zZsHS

advosanvt  Aousby Juswdojanspay pue|s| HUISN

0Z'ELv0

133HS SIH1 M3 OM ON

N

- - i 00+69 NYHL 00+65 NOILVLS

IEMEDUD OHATISE STTIVN STAYNS |
¥ SIInL SWLENT T IANEST e AIWD |
| W AT S DTN .niﬁ&.
i o)

SAININA ANAIT

NVE LSNMANNE | \ \. I
e —

HINVHLND
T
]_-- —-

~=—QONMOBLS Y3 0ZS AE

] —— e —
- —— i —— - 3

33v2 —
3|HLOOWS
IvdldoduL

JONVHLING
1SHI4 HLTY3aH




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

gl

zL | o I 14 '‘Aunon pieasig
NVY1d YIONA [BIpBWaY - Aemasne) pue|s| JILISI ISET 025HS

advosanvt  Aousby juswdojanspay pue|s| NN

0Z'EL'v0 .

-

SN HNOM SO LN L}

AMYETIITN SY AYMGSAVI OIS 3% N0 T3305
QOOMNTLLNE ¥3ATIS TV 30vHE ¥ NILHOIVALS T

QI ONILUWENS OL

HOIE YO TYSOSSIO ONY STYACASY ANV

FLYWILSD OL LIS IHL LISIA TIVHS HOLIWHLNOS

3L 3LI$~430 I50E5IA MYILOW LNV

ONIAC 7 S¥2A SNILSIE 40 ISOASIG ONY INONI

00+89 VLS INITHILYW

CISTLOY S| IMHILYIAN LRYd VSN JYIHM  E
S SANYHE § STANL ONUSIXI Ty SANISTYL
OB ATSTE 00+6 N¥HL00+69NOILYLS N\ A3US N NMGHE U3 LV SaNSIN) ONLES 3
0N
— 1
| . ng ﬁ /pnl. ¥NIHDIHD —1 jul |
ENOLSZHId HS1I3N0OB IE TIYA IMYNDS ONYTS| LLINNIW m W
I z |
N ”_ N
I # - i —— ——— i — e — i — i S— = m - i
F== |
L |
I
|
!
i
|
o
A, T
e e w
ANNOSLSIM DIS HS — == _
|
— |
i |
¥ @
— =N Pyr——— o! I
- - - X |
= - 2 —————]
= 3 )
i 2 I
£ 2 FHVE 35vHD '
g 2 I5WHD

JINVHINT
1Sd(d HLYEH '

NYOHLMYH NYIONI (09L) A4 30v1d3y
F WINI LYW INYId ONILSIXT IA0NTY

%= ") |\\ = ISNOFYvaLE
) NYOHINO?
HIINNT (56) /AN 3OV 13y _
B IVIHI LYW LNV ONILSIX3 JAOWIN




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F -BD4F-75448D7E0E57

ol 14 'Aluno) pieaalg
by ™= NV1d NIOAA |Blpaway - Aemasne)) pue|s| YIS 1Se] 0ZSHS
o advosanvt  Aouabyy Juswdojonspay pue|s| BB

.:\u S P>t g

INONYOM IO LW ¢!

ANVSSITIN SV AMMISITY 025 THL NO STFUL
QOOMNOLLAE HIATS TT¥ 39vuE 7 NILHOWALS T
oT8 OnLKEns oL |

WO WIS WSO T CRY DIWASHTY LN e

TAVALLTE S0 TUIT FUL LPIA TINE w Vi Loy

IH1 ‘US40 ISOISIT WIHILYA LNV

DNIAQ / 0Y30 ONLLSXT 40 3S0dSIO ONY ACHSY
“03SOJONd $) WIHIALYA LNVId VEN INIHw L

: 2EMEIIC TS ST
— e \_/j SUOUME ¥ STIN DKL TNV IR |
Ju '
- £ x = & 00+68 DmI._- OO.TON Zo_.r<.h.w < )umoz_zabquQ_xmp(SE(uﬂuzjuZ»mxmw.H:_
_ R — ISNOHNVSLS M2vaLno
LO7 INIDIYYY SNIFHDTYM ' v q
SFIYD STNAS % 1
-4
g |
- wE ¥
£
o
3

&
"
i
JONVHINT

SRS t— e e— g, e g, E_ N —
: r
1
i

00+54 VIS INTTHOLVA
i
8
E

SHIOULEIM G o5 —

(TR

u e — -
— = - - < —
.f At LT > 2 \\\nﬂ " s Taa Rt 1 g -~
1 S, R &

- g | — o % |

|||||| ~- g £\
MIIMD SIHAS M-S L8LY mw
| WLNIA NIdSY E £ J \ \ INVHS N MVILS
£ \

“Y3dINOC M3IN (S8) H1l
TI4NI'G3E INVId LNOHDNON¥HL
S¥IINAM ONIAG 3 Qv3Q IAONIY

{Qv3Q S1 3INC ? ONISSIW S| IND}
SOY¥VANYLS AOOMNOLLNE
Y3ATIS (@) 30VIdIY




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F AF-BD4F-75448D7E0E5S7

zZL | e TR 14 ‘Auno) preasig
o NV1d 3JOAA [eIpaWaY - Aemasne) pue|s| WIS 1SBJ 0Z2SHS

3dvosanvl  Aouaby juswdojanspay pue|s| JILSA

oo /NN
—_—— = =
W@ TRTSTS 00466 NYHL 00468 NOLLYLS N\

I

I

1 1;(._.:._...v..\.u.lu.l / J3IYT SIAS \\ e 1
k *F G .,...m...nV/

I ’

I

i

|

I

|

—~=—QNNOBLSVI 0Z5 ¥S

= — = 5 . ke
N =St = - / M
2| \ I =
| ONNOBLSIN (25 S »— \ B

| 'l

— 7 1

| / N opn sl T I

| e, \n\n\‘v ¥ o, — -« ..... i

H33uD SINAS

=

ENM YoM 40 LWy | __1

_ AMYSSITIN SY AVMISNYI 025 JHL NO SIIHL
QOOMNOLLNG #3ANS TTV IOVHE ? NILHOYHIS €
alg ONILLINGNS oL

s L L e P ‘3361 OCOMNOLLNE HIAS (1) HLIM 22743y
3HL 2115340 3SOSIT TVINILYW LNVId TIVELOOY P 331 COOMNOLLNS H3ATIS ONIAQ nown3d

‘ONIAQ J QY30 SNILSINT JO ISCSIA ONY IAOWI
3SOON S| WIVSLYW LNVTd MIN I¥THM 2
ISIMUYIHLO Q314102dS SSIINN

SINIWIOVIIE Wvd ONIMOTIOS MOTIE NEOHLMYH NYIGN!
| J3HS N WOHS WML S s | (o) 321433 'SWTVd TYAOH AN (2) IM 3791638 ‘diWNLS
uon WTVE TYAOH (1)  SWTve TYADH SNIAQ/GYSO (2) SAONSY

39




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

T4 ‘Ajuno) pieasig
NV1d MIOAA BIPBWIDY - >m>>®w3m0 puejs| BIIBIA 1se3 025 HS

advosanvl  Aouabyy Juswdojanspay puels| JJIB

Zl 61

T
]
SNITHHOM H0 LW | __ !
e —— = —
o a5 &S 2 00+60L NYHL 00+86 NOILVLS @ A¥YSSITIN SV AvMISNVO 025 IHL NO S3TuL
QOQWNGLLNG HIANIS TTV IOVHE ¥ NILHOIVELS €
QlE SNILLINENS DL
HOIYe ¥UOM TYSTEISIO ANY STYACWIH NI
ZIS THL LIS T OLIVHINGD
e ECRIDISECH B »mm_wwuwmwkm%ﬂn(umsnu:s INvd
0.1 3Na s8nNuHS ONAT 7 QY3 DNILSIXE 30 3S0dSIA NV IAOWIY
{ JCOMNOLLNE ¥IATIS "3341 OOMNOLLNG ¥3ATIS 028008 51 TVIHILYI LNYId MIN SHIHM 2
| M3N (52) 30V 14Ty (1) H1IM 30vTd3y TvaLooN N340 SEWAS sy VO G ST 1
| ¥ 3341 QOOMNOLLNE 'A3¥O N NWIOHS W13V 3¢VOSANYI ONLLSIXT |
| ¥IAATIS ONIAG IAOWIY Fich I
_ \l =
| e J.rﬂmu\. 4 |
Z e == . e 1

N
{
sk

e

~=—— QNNDELS V3 025 HS

[
T

56758 VIS 3N

ONNORITIM OIS W5 —=

N i gt

= e \ e R el %e

=
. _ \ i
Az aE
gg
ALIANIL SO 3
Y1031408YY SL13NIEL, -2 -
Q31v9aRvA VICOI¥08YY ALLINML
avag (o) 3ovd3y —! 03LVO3INYA V100(H08Y
av30 (£) 39v1d3y q3LYOIINYA

(511) LNV

039 3HLLNI N HOTNIW HLIM
33 COOMNOLLNE I3L QOOMNOLLNE 3OV1d3Y [(d3DVdS AT3ONYS)

S1IININL, Y10OINOENY
Q3LvyD3INYA A3 (€) IOVTdIY — SLLINRL,
¥IATIS (1) 30V1d3y AIATS (1) 30v1dTy SYIINAC 1TV IAONTY

V102N 08YY
3341 AOOMNOLLNE NYOHIMYH NYIGN! M3N (58) M 30V1d38 Q3ILYDIAEVA
¥IATIS (1) 3oV g3y

‘NYOHIMYH NYIONI 30 SSO1 %05 av30 (1) 30vId3Y

QO



DocusSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7EQES57

u0.0E =.b
r

2l | 011

‘wWw

HS

OTEL'P0 =

L0C=.4 TOS

B e

= Ed = n 3

(N

00+6}1 NYHL 00+60L NOILVIS N 7

SLLININL V1021408HY
(AV¥dSHIAO 3QICIBYIH) Q31Y9314vA Av3a (5) 30V1d3Y
SENYHS JOOMNOLLNE \I.

\| ¥IANS (8E) IOV IdTY

SLENIRNL Y102Ri08dY

NVid
ddVOSANV

(AVNASYIAO IAIDIBY3H)
SENYHS OOMNOLLNE

74 ‘Qunol pieasig
)IOAA [EBIpBWUBY - >m>>mw:m0 pue|s| BN 1se3 Q2SS

Aousbyy Juswdojonspay pues| NILIB

=

SNAMYOM SO LN L}

ARVEETTIN SY AVNATSOVD 555 e WO SETHL
COOAMDLLAG WIANE TV IIVNE ¥ Ml ©
Ofg ONLLLIENS OL
HOINd HUOM WSOISID ONY STYAQRZH LN 1d
FLYNILSE DL 5US FHLISIA TIVHS HELIVEINDD
302 ILUISHC ISOISI IMUTLYH LNV
ONIAT / Q¥3d ONILEIXS 30 ISOLSIT ONY IA0WIY
‘0350404 1 TWI¥ILYIN (N1 MIN 3434w €
ISWAYIHLD 03I03JS SSIINN
BENYHE T RITHL ONISING TV ZANITTTd
G:ui NASHE TMALYIS 2wy NS
30w

ALLANL,
Y1021oBYY
O3 LvO3IuVA

3341 OOMNOLLNE Qv3q (g) 3ov1d3y
HIAUS (1) HLA |/

33U SINAS 30V1d3Y ‘1IvELO00Y

L Q3Lvo3I¥vA av3Q (0 3ov1d3y HIANS (s¥) 30VIdAN
“._I:\l--l:l-i!-]\:l-:\ﬁ L

? 333 JOOMNOLLNE
\N HIAAUS ONIAC IA0ONIY M

e MV.\\»FL\\;..

/ [ i

] / _‘

! NYOHLMYH NVIONI ALLININL Y10D1H08YY

;v3a (06) 30¥1d38 —/ 03LVOIINVYA Qv3A (5) 30v1d3Y

. 3LLININL V1001308Y
i Q3LvOIHYVYA Qv3a (01) 30v1d3y

NYOHIMYH
NVIONI Qv30 (51) 30v1d3y

VANV SIHL LNOHDNOYHL \

SHNYHS NYOH1IMYH
NYIQN! Q30 (95) 3vTday —

HITYD SINAS

FLLENR L Y1021H08NY
A3LYOIINVA (9) 30V1dIY

3113N1uL,
ViooIHo8yY
Q3LvOIINYA
av3a (2) 30v1d3y

SEANYHS
NYOH.IMYH NYIANI (09) 30v1d3y




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

ABVSSITIN SV AVMISNYD 025 3L NO STIHL
ODOMNOLLNA H3ATS TTv 30YNE ¥ NILHOMNLS
Ot ONILLINE 1S OL

MOIHd ¥ HOM 17SOd5I0 ANY STYADWIN LNV Td
31¥RLS3 OL 3LIS IHL LISIA 1T¥HS BOLIVELINGD
FHL 315430 ITOLAQ IVINALYIA LNV
ONIAG / OY3Q ONLLSIXT 3O I504SI ONY IACNIM
QIS0 SI YINILYW LNV MIN THIHM
TEMUUO TS SEITND

EBN M ¥ FITNL DMLY TIV IANRTA N
"ASHD NI NMOHS T4 LYW TdVISONYT DNILSG

T

!

Ji0N

(AVHdSHIAO 301018H3H)
SENNHS JOOMNOLLNE
H¥3IATS (5) 39v1d3Y

o | u T el 74 ‘Aunog pleaaig
L NV1d NIOAA [eipaway - Aemasne) pue|s| BUIBN 1SET 0ZSHS
HS
= advosaNyl  Aouaby JuswdojoAspay pue|s| BB
. 0zErPe | | —
HAINNF M3N SQMVANYLS
(09) HLIAM Q38 LNv1d QOOMNOLLNE ¥3ATIS AMMOTIE
NEYTId "SSO1 %02 LY SENYHS NYOHLMVYH NYION) (562)
H3JINNT DNILSIX3 M NIJINNF 30UYAS FOVTdIN
. (A¥4dSN3IA0 3QIDIANIH) (AVH4SHIAO JORQIFUIH)
3 I SHN¥HS AOOMNOLLNE
ShDEamIe AN (AVHISHIAO 3QIDIBYTH) S8NYHS QOOMNOLLNE TN enEoNiay
ot 305 \9 SENYHS OOMNOLLNS HIAATIS (52) 30V 1dTN
— ¥3AUS avaa (Z4) 3OV (AVNISHIAC
& @ m w3 pB+BZL MUHL00+6LL NOLVIS N7 oLt N,
_ (2) ¥ SENUHS QOOMNOLLNE
YLOAOL NYNOY3 AW IS (L) SOVTdSH
! 1 1 ST
s ﬂi‘ﬂ!’lﬂ.}!‘”ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁlf
! . {~
[ k i
|
m —”
!
lm.- “ ~=—(JNNOELSY3 025 HS
m — - e e T ETISYRINDD AL TP _SAS TR WEC O
m 1
| - F——
= ) AL
W [ e M g ONNOSLSIM 05 us —=—
21
=l
I
" -
1= P i,
L S = =
e

QYVYANYLS QOOMNOLLNG
¥IATIS ONISSIW (1) 30V1d3N

Q¥VANYLS QOOMNOLINE
¥3IATS QIDVIAVA (1) 3DVd3Y

JLLINMNL YIO2I08HY
J31VYDINVYA Av3a 15) 30143

MIFUD SAMAS

(AV¥dSHIAC 3TIDIBYIH)
SENYHS AOOMNOLLNE
H3AS (02) 30V 13y

Q’I/



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

Tv13d ONILNY1d ¥3A0OANNOYUO ? NAHS

‘S'L'N

Tv13d ONILNVId W1vd

T S € TR e

SHNMIL LNV)d INORS AYMY ISYNIVYG

RIPEOD 4y Ty IMLISDA HOS IAVES DNKINNDHENS THY, |
T
A DA W 30 N O

NYHL H3HOH L STTYRLCON SNIAQTHMONS!
¥ By ONY T TIR1 TV TIVLSN
ET=

|z . 14 'Auno? pieasig
_ == 3 n_mm_u_mxm_w_m._ g JHOM |elpaway - Aemasne)) pue|s| S 1se] 0ZSHS
—— 1S INvId  Aouaby Juswdojanapay pue|s| NS

‘S'L'N ‘S'L'N

AVYL3A ONIAND B ONILNYId 3341

_ Pm DT ) Ty oy go ve b & TSRS e
| it e BV sty atod o =3 W PSORCUY 00 & B fusrrniey ¥ funns Seisg Suneg “

1SI7 JUeld - Aemesne) pue|s| YLIel 1583 025 ¥S

43



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQES7

e

VISV I[tH uesng

Buihp G107
ARp ¥SIUIIC o TEB IPT

N0 NOA 380438
LLE TIYD SAYATTY
MOTIE SLY= MONY

0L99-¥5v (L2€) W3BWNN INOHJ
CITY1 AYYYT ¥OLIZHIO
AJONTOV LNSWHOT3AITIY ONVISI LLIYEIN
SNOILYDIJID3dS IJvISANYT 677 LOVINOD IN3MD
STVY1IQ IJVOSANYT 7 LSHTANYTd 8
NV1d 3dvOSaNYT £+
NYd 3dvISANYT 51
NVId 3dVOSANYT &1
NVId 3dvOSONYT  #1
NY1d 3dvOSaNYT £
NYd 3d¥3SANVT 23
13FHS ¥3A0D 1-MAD

-X30ANI 133HS

VAIMOT4 ‘ALNNOD Q¥VYAINE
€ dvod 31v1s

AAOM TVIAANWAY
AouagYy yuotudojorapay] puelsy LD

M



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E5S7

a5

Y DILUAR
>)

6 1 N.u_& 74 ‘Aluno) pieasig
™ YOM [BIPBWRY - € YS
Nv1d
e 3dvosanvl  Aouaby Juswdojanapay pue|s| NS
133HS SIHL M¥OM ON
i T
o 1043a . \_ g A /) »mf;
> INOH ' _ > e b ¥ N
i Y Ly ¢ &b e
..- — ]
]
] o —
- ——— —
1 o
; —_ /
= - — B / uu f
m NID38 1D3MOHd TYIOZATY e _ f i ..| = = ..v...”—vu._-..-
I ( 3
]
1
.




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

'_
w
w
T o))
(/2]
2}
I o
- —‘!
! 3
4
2
o ‘q
Q R E
Y 5 -
L il 03
&
L=
.&.ii“:"’i‘ﬂ‘. !

AT VIRICID

PLAN

w

o

<€

O

A

zr

: j 28 -

| O

L C

; o

Re. / o

I ' ‘ ‘ v T i

i I 4 I' ﬂ——i_'_ — C

4»‘! [ vt‘[g h &

| Hal 5

E mun g

|3 i %

| ooy S

mue o

‘h.“ % %/ -D

TP ?

) ‘ ‘ ! ] e m é

g | ge
IV !'\IM | | ‘ I ! F4 (_U 'g =
- Z—}., v. :“.“ 3 L1 8 8 3NIMHOLYW 2 wu;
.---Iu -+*-IT-H,.+ Jo B b T t: &EJE
......... 'wlll ITITRTITHIRIHTIL E ! %
T'—_ < h ) 2 b
o = & &

b



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49ES-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EOES7

“SN=¥Y00a0d
QY30 32¥1d34 OL NOLLYIOT 3 TIONINCD
1v {S2) BNYHS SNJAYD0GTd (L) LNvId V

-S310ON O1-HID3dS

a ININHDLYW

e

L
GADE 3102IN

14 ‘Ajuno) pieasig
NV1d SHOM [EIpBWaY - € ¥S
advosanyt  Aouaby JuswdojoAapay pue|s| BB

—\

SYINVITO 138

- SONNDL
- L §F 5 ] --ﬂi
Y V108020

[
s
4
e
[a]
JAv Gl nvH
| e
5]
w
x
O
S
Z
-

L
!.

n
I
Q;_

N T =

T

|

1

1S3UNIdoNd | |E| |
I 3INOwd3d -

- b L ] *

</ SIS 1fay
SIAMND  NOPIVS
1

vyn”

M



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

6 | & i

sLsz’Le

e

MCYH NONIS ¥ NI TVIHILYIN LNYId M3N TIVLSNI
'30IM & NYHL SSTT S| VIHY (NI NYIO3N JHL

4l "INIWIAVd 40 3503 NV SSYIN LNYd 40 3903
N3IIMUIE IS NIJO A3HIW A0 .2 S| I¥IHL
LVHL OS SNYIOIW NI SLNYTd MIN TTY TIV.LSNI
FLON TVH3NID

"2 LL3NRIL VIODIN0EEY G3LVO3(HYA (9) aav H_V

(24 MmO 6)
WTod WVLXO MIN (1) /M (NOILIONDD HOO0d NI WIvd
TV.LXO4 INTAN ONILSIXT IOV I3 aNY SAOWIN v

‘SIION OI3103dS

NV1d

14 ‘Auno) pleaalg
NIOM [BIPSWSY - € HS

advosanyl  Aousby Juswdojonapay pue|s| JILIDN

i 1
1 ]
]
21 w-
m 1 1
z1 ]
) mi ATT34.0 ]
3 ! ATV ONITMOS SANY1 INOHS i
1 - N w U (S
- _ -+ = = —_— b e - — 5 |.-| —
W“H.l — — > — —_— — - 1
[ ]
1 ]
1 . e
] = = —_————— “||U
I - [ |
1 1
“ 5 — - ,Ildl o~ : ; mﬂl
T 7 1T T 0 ] 01,., g -
“ R ILNLILSNI NIVd EE[IEY]
L ANy S dOHS g Z 1SV0D 30vdS . I 3o

9



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

W0-0E =l
Eer

NYid

BL'SZ'LE "

"ANOYE ZTONIS VNI IVIMELYIN LINYTd M3N TIVISNI
33IM 5 NYHL SSI1 S| V=¥V INYd NYIGSIW 3HL

4l LNIW3AY 4O JOQ3 ANV SEVIWN LNV1d 40 3903
N3IIMLIB 30VdS NIdO Q2K 4O .92 51 S¥IHL
L1¥HL OS SNVIOIW NI SINY IS M3N TTV TIVLSN!
JLON TYHIN3D

(94 'MD 6) NIVd TIVLXOd (1) /M IOV Td3Y 3 WIve
WYLXOZ ONMOSNN ATTVY LONYLS ONILSIXS IACWITY v

*S31ON OidIO3dS

14 ‘Aluno) pieaasq
YO [elpaWway - € ¥S

advosanyt  Aouabyy Juswdojanspay| pue|s| JLIBN

' ! i
- O
E " SINIWLHVIY B 2y
S 4HO
“ AYNILNNOD I 2| 1Svoo 1sv3 “
2 )
r : e e e L\«S_m_ " 1 —
=—— —— = — -
] = ]
1 MW - 1
ﬂ = — Lﬂ[t‘l:l“l =
1 E E E = T
- L T £4 £ i 4 L L 4 aw -
“ — - (]
e —r1 =~ i T = =  em—— —
= T T ) = “ J o
! - e vZv1d g I i
L] e IMAITNTN o nm.nw_.._\..w ] . ...>._\.‘..

91



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E5S7

6 | 2 el

Wi

‘HS
ik

6L'52'HL

i 1od ncomasal

WCow X ¥ e TR YR Y T T

TS MG ST VDY L e A 3
& TONIere 72 XOS) RV EIVI L e #5 FTE
WO TN TOwl W3O OICTTN 42 4 W1 B,

71 DRI A R WA T TR T

1,0h et

HHOM TVIDINIH
SIHL ¥O4 N¥Td TOMLNGD JI33vH L ANYNOdWIL
¢ [DI4vaL 30 IONYNILNIYW) "L'O'W Nv 3IACYd v

(94 'MD 6] WTvd TIV.IXO4 (L) 1 30V TId3y
.J.ZmBommmuEs:Em:@:QﬁnDz.EEmB:mm vv

{00 .42 'oe) g38
._.zﬂmwz:w_xmo.rzm01§><1z<_oz_zmz§nn< _”v-

‘NOLLYDOT ¥3T108..NOD @ S8NyHS avaa
_mwoﬂmmmEwm:mxmmamm(uonon..Nj._.:.mz_ v

(93 ' 6) SV TIVLXO MIN (p) /A% 30V 1d3x
,m..._<m.roommH.._.I_n:wns:»w:#a.__ﬁ_.xcu:v.gosmm v

-S310N OHIO3dS

14 ‘Alunc) pieaasg
NV 1d JIOAA [BIPBWBY - € HS
advosany1  Aouabyy Juswdojanapay pue|s| JLISN

4 ANNHOLYW

NOILY1S

IAV HIVIANS

f
|
%
I
:

! ......-.n

)
ﬂ
]

| 60



DocusSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

VISV [ITH usny

SN

TYL3IA ONLLNVId ¥IA0OITNNOAD ? SNUHS

"SL'N

S1Iv13a
IdVOSANVY1 8
1SI7 LNV1d

74 ‘AJuno) pieaalg
MIOAA [BIPAWSY - € S

Aouaby Juswdojanapay pue|s| BISN

“SBUTyZ O =GR BT GO DAY MR W 0 8¢ Booial 10UTL TUALND S5 900 RIS anE
Heumene 1wE pepEmu 20y OGN g W Papnrt ag oL Buinimue, » Sumes Suilan Buoem *

o e A L) & E

g Ty

ISIT Jueld - puB|S| YUIPN € US




DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0ES7

65Tt

o | -.

ouz
T2y
AdE=TURT 3y} 10 UANIEISNRR 4] 0] AWAINDS (e PUY [eUBW Snoriadng ‘ST 1@ o
3k 34 JEA fleys ImIRAUST 3dRCIPUEN Y] 'UBNSAS M1 JFBUN XaM (B0 ueyDpdwaz LodA
dN-NY3TD
1w 2q 3averenb aul o SUIWANDES 3U| FRYS J0URLTD IdEISpuET Ay AQ pIpUae
uenadsur janbeagn pue Buwm i soReus) adespueT ay) Aa papuNY sdesoue
241 3t uarreayReu usdr QUO UoTRBdsUI [euy 5y ApEa1 S aford oy ieu) papad aajuesend
24119 0U3 Ayl 18 Buum Ut ALY SEBTTOUET 3] ANADE [leys JopenuDD adeISpUET AUl
FINYLADTY ANY KL DTN TeNld
aq [eus DelyLy aeTspUR 21 O AGRdaTIEUN [RIRIEW Z3eda, O] PASN [CUTIEW MaN
133y31N I0EISTUR| ) A9 pILIWIAFR e Qo 34D 0 UoNIdwes
PRI Sodn ag (R pousd Ja1URIPNS B\ -P7dasRe UISHECUEA PUB F3UBA|SaU
UMD 005 10 T WD #5 IEID O NP 'HneidIdoeun 3q 0] 1DapUAY adesspue]
3U1 A0 D3WIA IFACIOUNOIE JO STFIYS 231] Y8 [IRILY SCRSLOLET Al 10 UGB
1 Je saride reys 1o=ijues adesapueT Al JRaA U0 o pouad € It SI9ACOpUNCID
¥ Sanuus  swjed 'saay e VENITW DUE 3aUmend ||eys Joweiues 30RISDUET Y]
JAUNYYYND
WLIRLTI00 D00 0 U RS OF Do BETeNSd)
Buiaq 1uBd 3l Se WmPaLI BUIE|0 BUE 321 136 WS Ul o B JLaWadEdal T9
FPEIR LMWL D31TTI OJAQ 8] FUL SIUTO AIE 22803 RG:13d IUAWNSHOES3 AW BUNg
g B oulineag
paewepun pup ﬂ.ai_; Ay B L O PRUINESTL S0 ORI 3T
ey TEASES Bt AT
72, 5p3q BulLRld pLE Suonesa) Bumield (RNpwipw aur dssy possd uauN sFyersa sy; Butng
PaUAd ILALYS [LRIS3 PR ONSAIELES
128(0i¢ Ay Je uonesnp ay; yBron | oy epuc)d |0 APRIE WNLPLIL Palaans arsse
€1 Kevsrran gv paknk pur pRIs FRUNG D3YTMIL PABILE] PaIRIEM SYIER (1€ damy
QOISd LNINHSITav1SE

Bunumd of Jond smE: PACUILILICTA, 5 AINSYNUTW Je SR Ideaspue BIsedard
©1 IFOIAIY 1 2Bseusa-a1d paseq UIENG, Adde TS JoPRIeD dDmqisH usbiawa-ald O
ueeadde & Joud
leaoidde i) BTy SdEE0UCT U7 O] |GDE] PUR UGN J|eUS JEPEINET “SUTHEAIISUL
SR Jad pe oUW SAIWET Y G921 Jervris
BREG|EI MCIS B LW BUCD 20 BeS 3qAS Lawiads pue saan e o Bupass Bumpuay
Syun) 1o swap
I5urEBe paaed 30 10U 1G4S VINA X1 SAUILK € 45 WAL ¢ aq Jsnil pue " oaadsus
[Bug Jo 3uit) 3u) 1N 3989d Ul ASNONLGUO3 PaUITKIEW au yEUS YANW ). DZOT #9L
e Aq polaidu o2 st Bulluerd 1 uymu R pEIEL pue 2oinaid v Aiunes L Buaow 3

ALY At pre POSR. DL I CRIGLST 1 Sl ean

2 1y @ jenynagioy piepuers W Byl sauuew e ul peurud 3g (eus 533 B
105 auT pUR AYICOWS 113 90 I1PYS SeUOURIG 10 00! padellien Je LIXDIC fy Bunid O

MO WIS Wil W ST (B ST,
40 SIAUIET jC0) IESY SLAWNS0E PRADED 54 o 7 PER UBR Loptua pooll

W

=g Adadu A3 adnang pusTagve & e 6
I2yS SIFETILIEG *3|SsEd S ATl F9% U /0 3SEA A WOy 18 SR 10 SBege] 63
3110 3| SR 1 JE SIPENUL FTEJ VOIS 133023 Bunp SHew2p woy
s29n Buirsina Ra0xd o) pauyy sdexsaue a1 43 2o LIWNIDg 13RtUe) g ur
10/ C2NED UAYM T:3LIEG I3 FEITUL SHINEYE LOOY ONY NOLLITLONE JuL
<w0>
o4 ‘luled Ja421x2 U338 WP el POaw WIEd "SpRd aers u pac AY 00} A Del
ZLAgy ke 24 wauy LY-r4
R Wy T 2 AON Gl MEGTA (O LSAR Ak 103 N NG PR WAL
30 2y mg iy A R Y HAORE BG 81 Wkl Ay I DIpUEG KR am
URIUM STPHD B PR L-Bnt BRI oA i 00 A 0g] 2 4 2 eaaq i cowen
399 areysuA sled 29m0g (S32YL WY Y02 SINBWIYINDIY WID3ds 5

o

0§

1e6
ocE

oe
a8

he

184

i}

b7g

=]

z09

(D1
oog

| ps].5 £ uey) /aBig 's33y; wied Jey Javio ‘s3] ile Ao S35u1 30UV b
"AADOR IS 98 MRIEEY

Bu:ddens sjoraan Aq oeid ur ARl 1 DIDy DUE STNES AU UMY AEmpIY 3an

31 20@d ‘punci 3w W o o) 21 'Bun fw v'Z) & savels wu 00, £303] .5 A
- 6M) Uym IFGIED {wdl D8] % € UBYD 1a||ews pue Jadien [wuwr ag] 2 ueu) 1oE.e s3s)
Wied URL S0 5311 e aNES NI IO (WA DB CL WIN 0S] Y € OL Z 50 3341
SAOTE P B MO T

Buiddeu SHIRA UL FI@S | O} 1LY A UFRE Awrg Tueld A Jo umola a1

o Bupuana oue punDIB Ui [w 5/0] 2 183119 13 e [ww 05 Aq
smawelp {wiu 0g) Z uey) 1agews PUR JTIWE:D fun Sz, | uey

o

308 i) 92nES pUP
231 91 uAANGIQ ABMDIL 2408 0] PaIR2s 3 BudBay B 10 B [uu
008l .2} whwuw = sey L jeu3jew 3Brioyaue 1o Buseiq L saye Aue o asoy

spioya An 2sry F9ey B WEnOa 24 10 501 381 je o {nba panosdde o Icjoa
ua2.8 YITP FOg.-aSy J00R) 100 23Q kG 3] J3guy, [milew Burddws ) “e3alfap
oo

91 31 3y1 Loedns 1 seusiew Budduns AGixay Ja6c 12 13qqM "xsad Ipws 5N |
susiesyizads Bumolj) ) oy Buieiome

0UR SheVZ 2) Ul Il w2 caARE 1o P 3 (1RUE €33 Iy BurAng pus Buaig "o

LRI B 5 G % ol el vy

4358 2,5 18 PR 30 S1S1LBd [y Bunusd 31 J8 USHRING BU3 UOIPPUOS PALTISIOW

15 0 P TR  LLTE SRR NG 10 B U3t i Apdedan = gy g

1965 B oo lEBpaais agoe S50 0 RUBE L] WL, Tsedre U ey

- o 3% g s Egnurt pasdard

UpAS 3CEW O PRYS 13 Yoea &) e Bucurerd a 3o apeall gy Buicuno. ms ay) Y

WG 15T M PITI VRIS O B 5 PR B N M 1O Dgvind o D T Y A

Yoeg IPRIE ysUY 2AAqR KIUBKS 1 apel USIY DY) b EaJE BLIGUrGIINS 2u: s Usny

AT {UA YT 5001 341 JC 0] 3 PIMIS UILUA JBL) DS 199 9 IEYT 533U Iy el ButEs

patewep

4 veda; 1R 10; FREN I3 30 IEUS UE 'SLIANSNSAD TIRLNS-ANS J310 .0 9T

punpIBizoun FEELe €] 1o 3180 e feus SBUELEA 1¢) LORRABIYS W IODRRUSD BUL

K 1105 BUNUEK M3U UM Q1B %05 / %03 Ul [PUTIEW EIEARSKS BuiSxa Ny 1343] Jadoa

3U; 0 WPIFEQ 0] Pasn 3q APLL [2I1EW PATRAEIXA 341 ‘AIOY IR AU WOy PajeARIKA

SODG WL PR WIIDED RAAG A X i I 1 TRAED A B € gt e pundl B

10 .M3UPP A 939€3 e L Heq (0T 21 [EIUA H) 392Q 10
34 pUNLIE Iy 4394 |0 (3Z1S [19G 185) L Buuadap) wnwiuw 7, morte of uBnous aBie) aa
FEVS NS DRI DUE CAFER 15 SO VORI B0 15 GRS T LOEE FONS LT
*Aey BYT L £A/AWAD 3G IBYS B SIUAL3ACihlI JD SANIGN SBCWeE 20 DR AsIaApe
10U i SRR 6D 3UATRW MM XEeCTE 6P PRy B2 € Nty Summd gy 1eS BT
WHISE Bt B 3 0 SHAS IS TT PAIRMOSAE 33 beuw 1y eoude Ramaraidd e s

U sdeus ur [2ouougAd AuBnol 3q HeUS SUCKBARIXS Bd 1UBIY Siid JURlg |0 UCEARINT ¥

WO SO, K] REXTER 10 881 B OF M TERRS I PP MASTLOGS Dut/By By

NOILY Y.L SNI
MO

au) A2 aps 3yl Je poyddns T (BUS Y108 3Y3 10 LaNoaXa B; Ja, pannbial JBTM [y B >

1enba pasaidde ja Uiy BRUC| 2 WY UIINW WMOIS TOS, 29 FRUS WINW YR T

PRIl 79 12U M ISTUIAIHY SIf IEY] JAUNEW € LONS Ul pLE aBRIss josidioyieam

U POsRIe 3C RuT SRE) AT LR 0 3c pus T34jeue AQ Biam Bumous

PUR Pa£05 ‘S68Q CIEPURS Ul BITSEIT B (atur DRATE 4G [T (Eiyey LalwLs4

8euiein Jood ypm

STE 5 Si3uEid U 0291 3 J[euS PN ROE / FUBS %07 1900w 10 SdIya A Saye

1% €413 epuDly €7} ‘PuBS Te03 £/, 2q I1eys Buyveld 10) pesn 36 o) Dw BumEd W
WD Sunbyo; a eaEoTe 6 A PBE Y A ([ESU 71 PISD SjeuBIe

-

s
s

SNOILVYDId103dS
3dvosanvl  Aousby juswdojonapay pue|s| BB

“Aug )l awes
U1 O 1802 3U[ IPAG {PUS PUP SIRUCKLNT |RIAPY I8 J1ES |RaD) Ag panba) aq Aww 1)

lou SE a1e3 s Bunued o
Jout panawal 8¢ 18N 19LIEIO 3y} ' pajueld JIUD FITW 3y 24 ([EUs pue VoEUOdsUR)
) J01:0 £3.0] 24 97 ||EYS SIAUMELO3 Ul SIUBLY “FIIUENd [P UTHe3s ABRLS B Ut
CRAPIICO ) O UTIRAAS DUt 1 QAFD 00 JIE LAMTIO0 U Uakal Sty 1040yl A W
PaITIISqTa 8q Azw mued paddeling pue paljea s§ AxjEnb awes syl HuEK umoid JoLIEROD 4
Aieuoiuedosd pSEISU) 30 gRLS [O0I |6 Deads J0 YUEE 4O EQ
su; ‘prAomide 5 3l JafiEl AU o 357 DY )| WD SY O ST (EUOTDDE DU I8 13TNILY
FdeT9pUDT Su) i TEATEER U aen 30 AFW PayodT F90YT Ue] 3ZS U) JIEW ueld 3
WEEREE RASy (IR0 U TR B0 (T S0 BE PN SRELAITRERL
W0F  SIUIULIN S 2 EORT LI N TIOE SO 3G SIVE VD iy wmesl
TRGHLL3) SIRPIWIW 3Y] FPM( o] TOU MO 183, Ay} o) 1Werd au] jo day Bl Way Paraeaw
3¢ gEUS pUR ‘pE3IdS DUR 1YBIaY 341 Bq IRUS SRAN Jo) NUALAIMSeaw BUILIWIAIIP aul Q
B0, NIy 1 W A/3UI PA0A0T B JRUT IRt
Aoy Sty Bea s WS RIS DTFS DVE SREPRE [T 243 3Q IS QUe RWSAB 200!
PA9[AAIR oM "AUNRRY IAL JIPUS AU “JEA Lt UAUM PARIZ) HSSUA0 PLP DIUIUEKGHIaM
‘snoioBia puE AURESY BUNDS 39 leus SUEd 7 BUR PAEIISUT dSmIayTo ISR
UDPFE TSTE| USWAILNN ;O GO PR0SSY URTIaWY 341 A gRuosueds vaos Aominpy
1O COTITURY VIR B 19 MUTXAT A0 SR S0% B DR 15 1R PIUD BT
1 ON EPUaLS A IS SIRATERURAIE oue WA ‘EErE XMl e )0y Roesf Wl ayL Y
ed g 12 K utualad o
V@ ANRUZ  SuersiARl BIDEul SIUBLY Aiaainy 1) SFIRPLEIS PUR S3PRID, 3InAoLBY jo
|uswiedag eEUS| 3 JU) uf yHG| 135 ¢ SLonenda) Juerd PuR SpiERUSS Supeil SuoRIatsY)
oaunbas gp ypr K9 [RUS Pue Wiy paisndns 5P 15 UM Aasinu 9 eys sIURd gy §
Uk SO 10 SPIBPURS PUB S3PRID § AIUBY [0
iRedO0 LIS ] 10 USINP3 SIE] U1 i I3UEDICTTY n SaWEw U PEIPIEOUEIS
L e 13 90 PUT BIITT el 'y
Sparsuer: Gamiys, 50 D3T3 17 0§ WL e |y
SUB( 3L U3 PETEIPLH T8 PUB 10PENLOD IdeTSF U 3u) AG PRUSLIN 3 (leys I TIEW (el
ERlCEIR ]
ans Ayl e Z 401 A s vawm Euoesl
UsIuy 0y 3oTeUadSal 3G JEYS 0;IREVDD AURISAUE" 24 '5UGAP JO £ PUE SBOD LA FAQWAS
5 B00 U O B 70 BT 8 Buryes Irbas e o1y, ISR LIy 40 7 e @
S s g BELGH [RVY KSTEID B
NOLWYiEV4IYd 211§
dnuedrs J
|euatew ued Acogysnesun Jo Lawoeday ‘3
“viom
U MWD O S NIRRT SIS TIE NN Burue)e, Buizsyd pus BuLsumy -q
AuES BulesL PUE Sjeuajew: sseib pue senaew wed Bunsiting o
SUALIPUWE 105 J3YI0 Bue 12, BuneIod:ooul pur Bunauing g
‘padesspue) eq o) SEAIR (8 /2 JoTEIEdaId AN feLlj puE BupeIB ysus Y
OTIBS W 4 W ) I By Sl PRieD u)
i e Borstan a3 demas o s Busene
oA BUMEI] 1ISRILOD B DUR SUTIHEIYDICS SI UM SOURPIOZIR Ul 1iaM (45RQ
0 23uswispad 313j0wos 4] Jo; AEYsISay SauoTSasse
pue s2oupydde uawdinks ‘sEUA@W 10GR @ IBAPUI [RYS UDTIST SI |0 HJ0M L)
MUOM J0 340a5
peaud |[eys saypy
Y1 MiopA 1 ade=g Busmario) Y| PUE SUTIETYI=ICT PUe SBUMEIP ) UTTWA SRISUELRTSTS
FUR 10 AR 24 U] 18pUT 2121 SU0NRENT0 AUE SAMEAISUBASAI 1L Jo PUE SIUIWADCR a3y
8 i A SO0 BE PR SIS Ml LaPO o Wwiniad ) SunENapUn noERLRIgNS
T AR ST SR WS, G 0 LT 5 |01t i WD Papcor
443 SUGIFPUTD) EIFATS 19§ PUE SUDHIPUDD [RI3UID) A} €] FIOLTL 9 JOTIRTIOD U
IWMINID

104
oy

WE
oE

1z
4

&4
0oL

14 'Ajuno) pleaalg
MO [BIP3WSY - €S

400 £ 23030 e S LNE 1 I 1O

S A L S L R —a S A
tre 4

RATAECI LU LR

rnnin 2
oy
Py

VT w04 e

mm_.oz (CIEEEEI
40 IONYNILINIVA ATHINHOS)
TOULNOD D144Vl AYVHOIWAL

Dawe LI ¥ VRV L 91 IR v s IVVINGS Y. (3

NEI: | SNOS
SNIRNC W15 MO N i
3EISNTISIN S
TOOD W ENY.IEVR 1R A A1 AT ¥ ﬂfnn. E YA

LO3UHONY L YDUL WACHIAY KOIH= L7TH_IM 302N 5
NEIEI0 03A0Eads THL ADUE SNCI L41ATT £O B30NYHD € 1414 ON

303070 DVNIRKOS 20C 118
¥D23% N0 L23IIASHY Tel SCHOILNI LY 3-2 G tHONCHE 35
TNHE SO YA 3368 DV ROV T AD TROMITEORO aMY T

C22VEINOT ATRE 3_WAIXDYcaY 3¥Y GISIAODS
VSAIC s BNECIR 0 DI Sr2E SNCVICHERS

C32209C FIIANI-10 RETV 1 IR TRYA ¥ 7T
DHUINIVITO L0 IFSA D TIN5 WO VR INDD 5 IINUNIOLD
TNY SICDDILY,D TTV HLIM ATEADD TYHS ZOLOVSINGD 3

i SNV R YWTEOOD T TIVHE Metls TN TTY T

MOLOMLENOD 48 LNVT
SHL Ql MONId SBNOH v 1SV LY 0L-ZErnorL JMHSNAS, TIY2 'L

*SNOILVYOIHIO3dS IdVOSANY1

‘S31ON TVHINID

|0L



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT - S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

EXHIBIT “C”
MIRA REMEDIAL PLANS
SCHEDULE OF CONTRACTOR UNIT PRICES

Page 16 of 18

103



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7E0E57

SR 3 Merritt Island - Bld Form
SelDale: 092819

Campary.
Cemissl

NGTE CONTAACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR GW TAKEOFF S FOR MATENIALS: THE APPROVED PLANS SHALL PREVAIL

MIRA Remedial Plans - Cost Opinlon {Contractor Unit Prices)
Dale: or2r20

R 520 Enaf Morrilt Island Causeway - Plant List

WORMSALET
I AL M TOPAL Thess B W Qo beiem plaes N ke e
Y Cowcmpus emcius Sedceus’  SiVer Butorvwosd Standard barprerimdi L LY "V G I BN O NN N A B I
3 Roysiamea shile w FG 17 GW; Fioid 1 As Shoum 12530 Kam )| — L
[] P Earlrg Duragecd Dnind S5vm Dullorwrind 802 Fr Y] 3 200 00 ] L N L N
F BEANAM, g Cumagwd Cumd Sngl Pake 4000 41,0000 E N I
1 2 Ly nee _jwm)

m—m-mm Coct Vigha Flam Lty

Cardgrans

Mpuun confita Paciic B’ uwu Ptk Bhar
Tidvar Burtorroreosd

fus
178 Ritwliery whircols 'Tinette’  Varwasred Mmncy/s Timatie

& Bairaty

[reesomen]

| b
'W%‘Mwmmmnm =

520 Tolay "

SR 3 Merritt Isfand - Plant List

WORKSHEET
L8 A PaLlS
I-mm
O (L
2 IEMOVAL Ewatig Tread Pabm [iaiaty
“ AL l-wtmw-u-a 10719 Rumpew rentad
t MVOVAL Cantrg
Ilﬂlll.l
TOTAL Lhrtrs & Gored vt 8 fiiom Blan. 0

| )

WM 0 U Gy Compand Faem

g um- e ey

M JV% Cinirs by St Y% e ot mwuﬁmw

Then wi st et sl o by o

A= v Loy ey bl iy bt iots b AP AT] drws g Wl 0 R 030 Sraagn forn B S veh
& by A b st el project

Orend Toul: 902,040



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F4F-BD4F-75448D7EQE57

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LANDSCAPING PROJECT B7-20-41 CONTRACT

LANDSCAPING PROJECT — S.R. 520 AND S.R. 3 (a/k/a COURTENAY PARKWAY)

BID TABULATION SHEET AND NOTICE OF AWARD

Page 17 of 18

| 65



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB6A49E9-7D50-4F 4F-BD4F-75448D7EQE57

o

'S{USWNI0P PIq Ul PaYDads $2inpa20.Id YliM 3DUDPIOIID Ul 3q Jjoys Sipaddo
Uco s9INAsIp AUD 4O Bulllf "AUNWILIOD SSAUISNG 8} UYliM SSIndsip pup sjuiojdwo o jo Buypuoy 4oy puo jdwoid ssboinooua AJUnoD) pioAaaig

WOSTORPUDWSP MMM {D I0}SPUDWS( 10 THOD JUTIOPUSAAUT MAM 1D JUTIOPUSA Of Pajsod aID SUOHDPUSWILIODISS DIDMD YliM SUOKDINGD] PIg -

000E89L1IS
‘pPaplemy/ SUON ‘€ S pue 0ZS 10} [el0]
00269'0Z$
‘pSpiemy SUON ‘€ YS UO SWwajl ||e jo |ejo ]

00°0¥2'9$ .snig 2u1oed, eUdjU0d Sruaduns
00°00S°0Z$- BISIA (00D, BJNjOAS! Bjtauel]
:Jo uondaoxa ay) yum ‘papiemy
SUON 'sway| 1sI7 WUeld 0ZG U0 Swajl (|e 0 [ejo)
00'EE L '96$ :02S 104 papiemy/ aUON ‘(ej0 ]

14 'Souepy UoHIm

"ou| ‘saibojouyoa| uoRoNIISUO) UBIG)

"€1°656°28$ € YS pue 0ZS 10) piemy [e10]
6€°€5Z'81L$ :Papieme aq 0} £ YS U0 sway ||y

9€'£/2'G$-anIg dyioed, epauoa sniadiung
8t'9L1'623-BISIA (00D, EINjOAI BljeueIg
:Jo uondasxa
34} yym ‘papieme st Isi Jueld 0ZG UO Sway |1y
pL'S0L'v9$ 1025 10} piemy

14 ‘821314 Wo4

dnoig) Buipjing weansyng

IAJd ais

31VLS/ALID MOOGNIA

HOAN3A

spjouAsy aweydsis ‘Ag A31S0d

wd00'S @ 020z ‘61 1SNBNY YBnoJyL 0202 ‘TLIsSnbny :31va/3niL ONILSOd

Wd 00:2 @ 0202 ‘2Z Ael :3NIL 2 31vd ONINIHO

i-02-2-8 ‘ONP!g

109044 Buideospue Aouaby juawdojonopay pue|s| NN BIL pIg

4133HS NOlLVINgvLl QIg

S30IMBS
Buiseyaing

pIEASIPE

I

106



